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Chairman’'s Statement

ERE®E

2012 was a year of consolidation and strategic moves for Kingdom
Holdings Limited (the “Company”).
about the global economy, shrinking retail demand and stockpile

Plagued by uncertainties

of inventory in the garment industry, the textile industry saw a
significant slowdown in general. Facing such challenging operating
environment, the Company and its subsidiaries (“Kingdom” or the
“Group”) focused on the positives and has taken a three-pronged
approach in implementing its operation strategies. By setting foot
in emerging markets, consolidating its existing businesses and
developing new products, the Group managed to achieve satisfactory
performance. According to the statistics of China Bast and Leaf Fibers
Textile Association, Kingdom'’s export of linen yarn in 2012 increased
by 10.3% as compared with last year and accounted for 30.3%
of the total exports from the People’s Republic of China (“China”
or the “PRC”). Both export sales and volume of the Group topped
the industry, and the Group held on to its leading position as the
largest linen yarn exporter in China for the tenth consecutive year.
Moreover, the Group was awarded “National Innovative and Hi-tech
Enterprise of the Linen Industry” from China Bast and Leaf Fibers
Textile Association in 2012, further proving its leading position in the
Chinese linen yarn market.

During the year ended 31 December 2012 (the “Period”), the
Group furthered its expansion into emerging markets of linen yarn
such as Portugal, Turkey and Japan, and a stable growth of overall
turnover of 1.1% to RMB718,912,000 (2011: RMB710,960,000).
Nevertheless, the 8% increase in staff cost during the Period resulted
in a slight drop in profit attributable to the owners of the parent of
8.7% to RMB94,180,000 as compared with 2011. In order to allow
shareholders to share the success of the Group, the board of directors
of the Company (the “Board”) is pleased to announce that the Board
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK7 cents
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
HK?7 cents per ordinary share). The proposed final dividend is subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.
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Chairman’'s Statement

ERE®RE

Compared to cotton and chemical fiber, linen offers supreme  ZRfiiél#EEBFLEZMEL  BEEBRORE B
moisture absorption, ventilation, anti-bacterial quality and UV R IR MBI EIMRE RS - 32 BIRIR - RAFIET
protection, and is characterized by environmental friendliness, EEE2-BE AREERBEYER TMES
naturalness and comfort. It was used mainly by high-end fashion ®AEREZHNFIL ZFRK-—BEETERSHRED
brands in the past due to its relatively high price and limited supply. @& A - EREZEEEEHHBmET@EIEMI)EE
With the consumers’ rising demand for comfort and function of textile &) ER AR - EiE S EVIEIN - DA F R
products, the increasing production of linen and the introduction of %Y /7B 47 T #HAY #E H - 20 fill RS B 82K i % B
many new and blended fibers, linen fabric is drawing the attention — FR/t1T AR & oo RE AN K R 47 48 on M2 00 B BR - dE T HE
of more and more international fashion brands and home textiles BN K EEE X FEA - FEE P EE OB
brands, and this has contributed to the growing consumption of linen — RA R BRI M F 6% E & A ZE1% - B 48
yarn every year. On the other hand, as the rate of import tariff on  EERFETMANEREETEHRE N RARD
linen raw material has been lowered by the Chinese government from  E A FMRIEREMA A ER TSRS

6% to 1% in the past two years, the Group believes that the price of

linen yarn will become more competitive, and it will facilitate wider

application of linen yarn and contribute to a better prospect of the

linen industry.

As a leader in linen yarn production, Kingdom possesses ample @®FEERDMA EENERPE BERATHNE
resources and capabilities in grasping market opportunities. It will — JRF1&E 77 HUE [ AT &Y T 5 #38 - B AT A — R 5]
promote greater application of linen yarn and boost its market share — ¥7E A& FE gL R SR E R 40 RO FE A &
by developing various new products and expanding its production — EF1H# — 238 hN 7145 17 58 o 748 52 B /9 37 & G 20 i
capacity. The Group’s new product, linen dope-dyed fiber, was @HHE T —=F— F# L BFR 7T EiiEE
launched in January 2013, which supplements the single-colored G iR E —KIRIE - B AT M5 EHARE ARIE
linen fabric. None of the large-scale producers in the market currently YA ERE B EE @ Bt HAWER NEER
offer this product. The Group’s product not only fills the market niche, ~ # T M35 8V ER O - b AR HE ML 6 E
but also allows wider application of linen yarn. It is expected that ~FAER  BEHKATEENNBIIERSE &
it will become a star product contributing to profit growth as well ~ B)ZEEEEFRFTIRA - AEEFE  NEBMHES
as boosting overall gross profit margin. In terms of production, the — &XEEHTEAARAE - Bt - ROIEBEBER
current capacity of the Group no longer satisfies the ever-growing I & /B GMNE = [E£EE M B HE_Z
demand, and thus, the construction of the Group’s third production ~ —PUF—FEFFRIKE  [EFRF - A EEFEE S B
base, located in Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, is in progress and B Al#713,0000f £2 7138%% 18,0000 * /& FHRE K
it is anticipated that it will commence production in the first quarter ~ T35 58] N BB EH -

of 2014. At that time, the annual production capacity of the Group

will increase by 38% from 13,000 tonnes now to 18,000 tonnes,

and this will lay a solid groundwork for the Group to capture greater

market share.

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#RER A A 5
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Chairman’'s Statement

ERE®E

Linen textiles consumption is still in its development stage as it
concentrates in the United States, European countries and Japan
with greater consumption power. However, linen textiles are gaining
acceptance in some Asian countries and emerging economies such as
Korea, India and Turkey, where the development of local linen textile
industry is flourishing. According to the statistics of the customs of
China, China’s export of linen yarn to India and Turkey in 2012 rose
year-on-year by 15.1% and 38.7% respectively. Kingdom took the
initiative in the development of emerging markets and appointed
brand agencies in those three markets for making preparations for
the establishment of sales channels and brand reputation and the
expansion of market share. Besides overseas markets, the Group
also set its sights on the Chinese market in the long run and aims at
promoting the acceptance and development of linen textile products
in China. In 2010, the Group set up the China Linen Market with,
among others, China National Chemical Fiber Corp., aiming at
providing a fair and transparent online transaction platform for linen
enterprises so as to promote the development of the whole linen
industry. Looking forward, the Group will bring its existing advantage
of being a industry leader to the full and actively foster wider
application of linen yarn and potential of linen textiles by organizing
large product fairs and technology conferences, and working closely
with textile associations.

The Group considers that future challenges mainly come from the
pressure of rising staff cost and energy cost. As such, the Group will
continue to improve its production equipment through technological
upgrade and machinery automation in order to enhance production
efficiency and hence reduce costs. Capitalizing on its production
scale and techniques which are ahead of industry peers, Kingdom
enjoys greater power in passing extra costs and thus is more capable
of maintaining market competitiveness. With excellent capabilities on
research and development, a solid clientele, agile marketing strategies
and an established production capacity, Kingdom is well-equipped
and is poised to seize any opportunities arisen in the development of
the linen textile industry in a timely manner and create better return
for the shareholders.

Bl S4B arEEM S NEREREE  +
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BEXREEMREE bR S)E 1648 %
MR- RIETBEESEGT —F——F HEH
OEEMEEEMEMA RRE L EF15.1%H
38.7% - S ELIBHE TS EEMLE  REEL
FEARRZERENRE BTFAHEEEE B2
MR F IS0 BT EFE B T8I
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ZWiE] - ATEMCEREATFERNRBER ST
BREDMITEMNERER AR RMBEE
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183 HE & o i 40 1) JE B LA K% g0 ik 47 Ak o B 3 1%
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to the management team and the staff for their contributions in the
past year. | would also like to thank the shareholders and business
partners for their staunch support and trust. | believe that our mutual
efforts will help to bring the results of Kingdom for 2013 to new
heights.

Ren Wei Ming
Chairman

Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 15 March 2013

Chairman’s Statement
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Financial Summary

MBERE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group ~ ANEE ST AN BFENEBEAREERAE
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published Z (FtrE B EEZMIERE  WLES
audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, ~ B8 (2@ ) ) H AT o

is set out below.

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+-ALEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
“E2--f _ZT——fF _ZT-TF _ITTNFE _ITT)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

REVENUE ON 718,912 710,960 628,718 491,165 448,231
Cost of sales HEKAR (509,612) (482,957) (462,876) (435,148) (393,916)
Gross profit EH 209,300 228,003 165,842 56,017 54,315
Other income and gains Hi s R i5a 8,320 9,403 13,806 6,374 9,380
Selling and distribution costs HERDHEKA (34,358) (30,268) (32,125) (18,625) (17,700)
Administrative expenses THR X (39,821) (39,191) (31,914) (34,597) (38,292)
Other expenses HEthfx (3,544) (8,165) (3,637) (6,163) (4,874)
Finance costs TG (12,848) (14,720) (15,152) (19,325) (27,432)
Share of profits and losses of an FEfE— B E R AEH Rk
associate BB (285) 17 652 - -
PROFIT/ALOSS) BEFORE TAX BR AR (BE) 126,764 145,079 97,472 (16,319) (24,603)
Income tax (expense)/credit s (AX) /8% (32,584) (41,940) (29,541) (1,837) 1,776
PROFIT/LOSS) FOR THE YEAR FREF/ (FR) 94,180 103,139 67,931 (18,156) (22,827)
Attributable to: JE1
Owners of the parent BAREEA 94,180 103,139 67,931 (18,156) (22,827)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-8

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

—E--f —2——% -5 CZTTNE ZTTN\E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETT

TOTAL ASSETS BEBE 1,149,187 1,046,094 1,151,756 1,097,359 1,161,723
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEBE (326,308) (284,231) (466,786) (480,457) (526,814)
NET ASSETS BEFE 822,879 761,863 684,970 616,902 634,909
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The linen yarn industry has gone through thick and thin in 2012,
struggled through the hard times at the beginning to good times at the
end of the year. In the first half of the year, the retail market in Europe,
a key market for linen products, was affected by the sprawling debt
crisis and continued to be suppressed. Furthermore, economic growth
in China slowed down and the stockpile of inventory in the garment
industry was rising. All these factors have restrained the overall
demand for linen yarn. Fortunately, as the other key market for linen
products, namely the United States, recovered steadily in the second
half of the year while demand from emerging markets such as Turkey
and India were on the rise, the overall market started to revive in the
fourth quarter.

In 2012, the Group held on to its leading position as the largest linen
yarn exporter in China for the tenth consecutive year. According to
the statistics of China Bast and Leaf Fibers Textile Association, the
Group's export of linen yarn in 2012 was up by 10.3% as compared
with the corresponding period last year and accounted for 30.3%
of the total exports from China. Both export sales and volume
of the Group topped the industry. In 2012, the Group’s turnover
increased by 1.1% as compared with the corresponding period last
year to RMB718,900,000. During the period under review, despite
the weak demand from major textile markets, the demand for
linen yarn showed a stable increasing trend. The Group has been
actively exploring new markets such as Portugal, Turkey and India,
and the demand from these countries were on the rise, the Group’s
sales volume as a whole was able to improve. As the Company has
adopted a prudent strategy in adjusting the price of linen yarn, the
effect of the rise in sales volume on the Group’s overall turnover was
offset.

Impacted by the year-on-year rises in raw material and labor
costs, the Group's gross profit for the year dipped by 8.2% to
RMB209,300,000 and the gross profit margin also dropped by
3 percentage points to 29.1%. The Group has taken measures
to optimize its production equipment with a view to improving
production efficiency and reducing costs. In the meanwhile, the
Group has also introduced dope-dyed fiber in the fourth quarter of
2012 so as to capitalize on the market recovery. This initiation was
well-received by the market. It is believed that the Group will be able
to bring its overall gross profit margin to new heights in 2013.

BEEEBNWR DN

E3 301
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEBNWR DN

Major Markets and Customers

With operations in over 20 countries and regions around the world,
the Group balances its sales strategy between domestic and overseas
markets. In 2012, sales to the domestic market accounted for
approximately 33% of the total turnover, representing a 6% decrease
as compared with the corresponding period last year, while sales
to the overseas markets accounted for approximately 67% of the
total turnover, representing a 6% increase as compared with the
corresponding period last year. In the past, high-end textiles markets
in Europe, such as Italy, have been the most important overseas
market for the Group. However, in view of the recovery of the
manufacturing industries in Europe and the United States in the past
years, the Group has noted the unique position of Portugal as an
emerging textile base in Europe. It firstly appointed a brand agency
in this market in 2011 in order to establish a foothold in this market.
To offer the fastest and most-comprehensive services to high-end
fabric and garment manufacturers in Europe and Asia, the Group has
now appointed four brand agencies in major linen yarn consuming
countries and regions in Europe and Asia in addition to the branch
company established in Italy.

While exploring new markets, the Group also attaches great
importance to the enhancement of cooperation with existing
customers. In September 2012, the Group organized Kingdom’s first
overseas forum on the linen industry with the Group's sole agency in
Istanbul, Turkey. More than 30 key customers of the Group as well
as major purchasers were invited and attended this forum. This forum
provided a platform for the participants to share their production
technologies, marketing information and latest products, and also
enhanced the communication, trust and confidence between the
Group and its customers. The Group also grasped the opportunity to
improve the quality of its services and demonstrate its edge over its
competitors.

FEMEREF
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Purchases of Raw Materials and Related Strategies

Linen fiber, the raw material of linen yarn, is mainly imported from
European origins such as France, Belgium and Holland. Being one
of the largest purchasers in these producing countries, the Group
enjoys better bargaining power over its competitors and is capable of
purchasing in bulk, and, therefore, has a cost advantage. On the other
hand, the Group intends to set up an office in France in 2013 for
raw materials procurement in order to secure a timely and sufficient
supply of quality raw materials, thereby enhancing its competitive
edge.

The Group’s raw material base in Xinjiang with a current annual
production capacity of approximately 1,200 tonnes has produced
908 tonnes of organic linen in 2012.

Production Bases and Productivity

As at 31 December 2012, the Group has two production bases in
Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province and Rugao City, Jiangsu Province,
respectively, with an aggregate annual production capacity of 13,000
tonnes. In 2012, the Group has optimized its production efficiency,
enhanced its productivity and reduced its costs by implementing
various technological overhaul, including machinery automation
such as introducing combined linen hackling and spreading machine
(R —88#) . The Group’s production lines have reached
saturation point. To take advantage of the rising demand for linen
yarn, the Group has started the construction of the third production
base, which is scheduled to commence production in the first quarter
of 2014. This production base located in Haiyan County, Zhejiang
Province will have a planned production capacity of 5,000 tonnes
mainly in high-value added linen dope-dyed fiber. At that time, the
annual production capacity of the Group will increase significantly
by 38% from 13,000 tonnes now to 18,000 tonnes. This production
base will be equipped with the latest technologies and equipment.
Compared with the two existing bases, this new base will command
higher production efficiency, reduce more energy and water, and help
the Group to further reduce costs and fight in the current operating
environment against the ever rising energy and water prices.

BEEEBNWR DN
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEBNWR DN

1st Phase of production base WL R G HE R — A E R
in Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province
Production base in Rugao City, TLARE IR T A E A

Jiangsu Province

_I_

ok

Total =

Achievements and Awards in Research and Development

The Group is always committed to innovation on technology
and technique as well as new product development. In 2012,
the Company achieved various new technological breakthroughs
and developed high-value added dope-dyed fiber, thereby further
expanding the proportion of high-margin products. During the year,
the Group applied for a total of 13 patents, including 5 invention
patents, 6 utility patents and 2 design patents. As at 31 December
2012, the Group has obtained 34 patents.

In 2012, the Group received various awards which have proven its
well-recognized leading position in the linen yarn market.

J “National Innovative and Hi-tech Enterprise of the Linen
Industry” from China Bast and Leaf Fibers Textile Association

J 2011-2012 Top 500 Competitive China Textile and Garment
Enterprises

o 2011-2012 Top 10 Competitive China Linen Knitting
Enterprises

J 2011-2012 Top 100 China Textile and Garment Exporters

o 2012 Major Exporting Industrial Enterprises in Haiyan County
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s turnover
increased to RMB718,912,000, representing an increase of
approximately 1.1% year-on-year (2011: RMB710,960,000). Despite
a slight drop in average selling price of the Group due to the weak
textile market in 2012, the Group recorded a positive growth in
turnover with the increased sales volume as compared with the
corresponding period last year.

Breakdown of turnover by sales regions:

Sales regions: HEWE:
Mainland China A K e
European Union X BR
Non-European Union JERR R
Total B
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B
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B1.1% (ZF——4F: AR#710,960,0007T) © &
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For the year ended
31 December

Bz
+TZA=+—BLEE
2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
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237,860 274,939
246,520 225,979
234,532 210,042
718,912 710,960
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 December 2012, in light of the reviving sales
of linen yarn products and rising raw material prices, the Group’s
gross profit recorded a year-on-year decrease to RMB209,300,000
(for the year ended 31 December 2011: RMB228,003,000). Gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2012 dropped to
approximately 29.1% (gross profit margin for the year ended 31
December 2011: 32.1%), mainly attributable to the adoption of a
prudent strategy in adjusting the selling prices to transfer costs in view
of the waning condition of the overall textile market.

In order to secure its supply for the whole year, the Group purchased
a large amount of linen materials in early 2012 as a strategic move,
thereby successfully avoiding the adverse impact brought by the
increase in raw material prices in the second half of 2012. The
Group also engaged an external professional audit firm to audit
the Company’s infrastructure projects, and continued to implement
the sub-contractors appraisal system. Internally, the Group has
strengthened internal cost assessment so as to ensure its cost
advantage. Greater efforts have also been made by the Group not
only in consolidating its domestic market, but also in developing
overseas markets.

Other Income and Gains

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded
government grants of approximately RMB6,023,000 (for the year
ended 31 December 2011: RMB4,510,000).

Selling and Distribution Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s selling and
distribution costs amounted to approximately RMB34,358,000
(for the year ended 31 December 2011: RMB30,268,000), which
accounted for approximately 4.8% of its turnover (for the year
ended 31 December 2011: 4.3%). The increase in selling costs
was mainly due to the rise in marketing expenses arising from
increased marketing effort during the period, as well as the surge in
transportation costs brought by increases in export and shipping fees.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s administrative
expenses amounted to approximately RMB39,821,000 (for the
year ended 31 December 2011: RMB39,191,000), representing an
increase of approximately 1.6% as compared to the corresponding
period last year. Administrative expenses increased mainly due to the
increase in staff salaries.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2012, finance costs were
approximately RMB12,848,000 (for the year ended 31 December
2011: RMB14,720,000), representing a decrease of approximately
12.7%. The decrease in finance costs was mainly due to the decrease
in average bank loans as compared to last year.

Share of Profits and Losses of an Associate

For the year ended 31 December 2012, share of losses of Huaning
Flax Electronic Business (Zhejiang) Co., Ltd. (47T % %% 25 it & F P 15
BRR/AA]), an associate established on 28 December 2009 in China
principally engaging in sale of linen yarn products and provision of
transaction services, was approximately RMB285,000 (for the year
ended 31 December 2011: share of profits RMB17,000).

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a profit
attributable to owners of the parent of approximately RMB94,180,000
(for the year ended 31 December 2011: RMB103,139,000),
representing a decrease of 8.7% as compared with the corresponding
period last year. The decrease was primarily attributable to decrease
in overall gross profit margin.
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Intangible Assets

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's intangible assets were sewage
rights granted during the year for a term of 20 years, which amounted
to RMB10,818,000 (31 December 2011: RMB11,323,000). Intangible
assets are subject to amortization based on their useful lives. For the
year ended 31 December 2012, amortization of intangible assets was
approximately RMB599,000 (for the year ended 31 December 2011:
RMB596,000).

Trade and Notes Receivables

As at 31 December 2012, trade and notes receivables of the Group
increased by 46.0% to RMB218,077,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB149,338,000). The significant increase in trade receivable was
mainly attributable to the increase in sales in the fourth quarter of
2012 as compared to the corresponding period last year. Furthermore,
with the tightening liquidity of domestic customers due to the
slowdown of PRC economy, notes receivables of the Group increased
sharply.

Trade Payables

As at 31 December 2012, trade payables of the Group
were approximately RMB43,186,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB58,349,000), representing a significant drop of 26.0%. Such
decrease was mainly due to the Group’s fewer purchases of
raw materials in the fourth quarter of 2012 as compared to the
corresponding period last year.

Interest-bearing Bank Loans

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s interest-bearing bank loans
amounted to approximately RMB215,684,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB164,100,000), representing a significant increase of 31.4%,
mainly reflecting the Company’s normal requirement for working
capital.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current assets
of approximately RMB385,792,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB333,629,000). The Group financed its operations with internally
generated resources and bank loans during the year ended 31
December 2012. As at 31 December 2012, the Group had cash and
bank deposits of approximately RMB163,643,000 (31 December
2011: RMB163,502,000). The liquidity ratio of the Group as at 31
December 2012 was approximately 222.1% (31 December 2011:
221.0%). Shareholders” fund of the Group as at 31 December
2012 was approximately RMB822,879,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB761,863,000).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had bank loans repayable
within 12 months from the statement of financial position
date of approximately RMB215,684,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB164,100,000) and no long-term loans (31 December 2011: Nil).
Together they represented a gross debt gearing (i.e. total borrowings/
shareholders” funds) of approximately 19.9% (31 December 2011:
21.5%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2012, outstanding contractual capital
commitments of the Group in respect of purchase of property, plant
and equipment not provided for in the annual financial statements
amounted to approximately RMB80,526,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB977,000).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities.
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CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, the interest-bearing bank loans were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, prepaid land
lease payments, inventories and pledged deposits of the Group
with carrying amounts of RMB43,770,000 (2011: RMB48,470,000),
RMB28,031,000 (2011: RMB28,738,000), RMB52,302,000 (2011:
RMB40,000,000) and RMB35,900,000 (2011: RMB37,600,000),
respectively.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group made an
investment of RMB45 million for the establishment of Zhejiang Jinda
Flax Co., Ltd. (I I & Z M AR AF]), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s transactions are mainly denominated in RMB, United
States Dollars, Euro and Hong Kong Dollars. The exchange rate
changes of such currencies were monitored regularly and managed
appropriately. Currently, the Company also has certain foreign
currency forward contracts entered into by utilizing its credit line,
and derivative financial instruments of approximately RMB68,000 (31
December 2011: RMB1,033,000) was recognized by the Group as
assets as at 31 December 2012.
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REMUNERATION POLICY AND SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total of 2,150 employees
(31 December 2011: 2,237 employees). Total staff costs incurred for
the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted to RMB102,195,000
(for the year ended 31 December 2011: RMB101,039,000),
representing an increase of 1.1%, which was mainly because of
the rise in the Group’s remuneration, offset by the decrease in the
number of staff during the year.

The Group offers comprehensive and competitive remuneration,
retirement scheme and benefit packages to its employees. The Group
is required to make contributions to a social security scheme in
China. Moreover, the Group and its employees in China are each
required to make contributions to fund pension insurance and
unemployment insurance at rates specified in the relevant laws and
regulations in China.

The remuneration policy for the employees of the Group is
formulated by the Board with reference to the employee’s respective
qualification, experience, responsibilities and contributions to the
Group, as well as the prevailing market rate of remuneration for a
similar position. The remunerations of the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”) are determined by the Board and the remuneration
committee of the Company (the “Remuneration Committee”)
with the mandate given by the shareholders at the annual general
meeting having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics. The Group also
provides both internal and external training programmes for its
employees from time to time.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the Directors,
including independent non-executive Directors, and other employees
of the Group who have contributed to the success of the Group’s
operations.
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The Company granted 9,100,000 share options under the Scheme
on 9 July 2010. The Group recognized a share option expense of
HK$948,000, equivalent to approximately RMB771,000 (2011:
RMB1,028,000) during the year ended 31 December 2012. The
3,640,000 share options exercised during the year resulted in the
issue of 3,640,000 ordinary shares of the Company and new share
capital of HK$36,400 equivalent to approximately RMB29,000
and share premium of HK$2,596,000 equivalent to approximately
RMB2,180,000.

As at 31 December 2012, the Company had 5,460,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme which represented approximately
0.87% of the Company’s shares in issue, outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, results in the
issue of 5,460,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$54,600, equivalent to approximately
RMB44,000, and share premium of HK$2,129,400, equivalent to
approximately RMB1,732,000 (before issue expenses).

PROSPECTS

Prospects and Plans

Recognized for offering supreme ventilation, moisture absorption,
anti-bacterial quality and comfort, linen textiles are emerging under
the spotlight of large fashion and household textile brands. Apart
from traditional uses in woven textiles, the Group has also noted
the increasing application of linen yarn in knitted fabrics, and
believes that knitted fabric will become a key growth driver in the
next few years. As a result of the development and growth of the
linen textile industry, many new and blended fibers were introduced
into the market. The Group believes that this trend will promote
the expansion of linen yarn use as well as the steady growth of the
linen yarn market. Being a leader in the linen yarn industry, the
Group has always endeavored to promote the use of linen yarn.
Through persistent development of new products and expansion in
the domestic and overseas markets, the Group is poised to seize any
opportunity and surmount any challenge in the future.
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Dope-dyed fiber, another high-value added product of the Group,
has been introduced in January 2013. Dope-dyed fiber is produced
by adding a dyeing process to the original spinning procedures so as
to adapt the single-colored linen yarn to be used in the production
of a wider selection of fabrics for better uses in the fashion industry.
None of the large-scale producers in China currently offer this
product. Therefore, the Group is the pioneer in this market and
will aggressively market dope-dyed fiber. It plans to use 1/4 of
its production capacity to produce this product. In the future,
the Group will focus on the high-end market and accelerate the
commercialization of new technologies in order to get an edge in
the competition. The Group will also expand its production capacity
in tandem with product innovation with the aim of equipping itself
for greater market share. The third production base of the Group
will commence production in the first quarter of 2014 and bring the
Group's total production capacity to 18,000 tonnes. At the same
time, the Group is actively exploring opportunities in the Yangtze
River Delta region for better resources consolidation and core
business enhancement.

The Chinese government has lowered the rate of import tariff on
linen raw material from 6% to 1% since 2010 which has boosted
the competitiveness of Chinese linen yarn producers. The Group is
fully committed to the development and promotion of applications
and uses of linen yarn in the overseas market with its position as the
leader in the industry. In addition to the existing markets, the Group
will also set foot in the promising markets in Eastern Europe, such as
Belarus, Lithuania and Ukraine. The Group has made the first move
in 2012 and visited and studied the linen textile industry in Belarus.
It will actively explore the markets in Eastern Europe with a view
to establishing new sales channels before all else. Leveraging its
established production capacity, advanced manufacturing techniques
and comprehensive sales network, the Group will continue to
develop applications of linen yarn and lead the global linen yarn
market.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ren Wei Ming ((E#£87) , aged 53, is the chairman of the Group
and an executive Director. Mr. Ren is responsible for the overall
management of the Group and making decisions on the business
development strategy of the Group. Mr. Ren has worked in the silk
and textiles industry since 1979. He has been the chairman and
general manager of Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd. (“Kingdom
Creative”) since 2000. Mr. Ren started to engage in the linen yarn
manufacturing business through Haiyan Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd. (“Haiyan
Ziwei”) in December 2001 as its director. He joined the Group in
March 2003 when the first operating member of the Group, Zhejiang
Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Jinyuan”) was established. He
obtained various awards including National Township Entrepreneur
awarded by the Ministry of Agriculture of the PRC. Mr. Ren is
currently the vice-president of China Bast and Leaf Fibers Textile
Association, National Excellent Young Factory Manager, Zhejiang
Provincial Excellent Entrepreneur, the vice-president of The Hong
Kong General Chamber of Textiles Ltd. and Representative of the 9th
and 10th National People’s Congress of Zhejiang Province. He is also
a director of Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited with discloseable
interests in the shares of the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQO”"). For further details, please refer to pages 33 to 36 of this
annual report.

Mr. Shen Yueming (JL#883) , aged 51, is an executive Director.
He is also a director and general manager of Zhejiang Jinyuan
and a director and general manager of Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co.
Ltd. (“Jiangsu Jinyuan”). Mr. Shen is responsible for the day-to-day
operations and management of the Group and also takes part in the
decision making of the Group. He has been a director of Kingdom
Creative since April 2000. He was then appointed as director of
Haiyan Ziwei in December 2001, before joining the Group in March
2003.

Mr. Zhang Hong Wen (3R ) , aged 46, is an executive Director.
Mr. Zhang is the director and financial controller of Zhejiang Jinyuan
and Jiangsu Jinyuan. Before joining the Group in 2003, Mr. Zhang
was the assistant to the general manager and the head of capital
clearing division of Kingdom Creative from 2000 to 2002.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert (Z8£/€) , aged 63, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Ngan is the chairman of Millionfull Company Limited,
a company incorporated in Hong Kong engaged in the trading of
linen and linen blend textiles. Mr. Ngan has been a member of the
9th and 10th Fujian Provincial People’s Political Consultative
Conference since 2003 and vice-chairman of Po Leung Kuk from
April 2010 to March 2012. He was the president of The Hong Kong
General Chamber of Textiles Ltd. from September 2009 to August
2011 and has been appointed permanent honorary chairman of The
Hong Kong General Chamber of Textiles Ltd. in September 2011
and a director of HuaQiao University in 2002. On 22 November
2011, he became a member of the Election Committee of the Chief
Executive Election of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
He joined the Group in September 2004. He is also chairman of
the board of directors of Millionfull International Co., Ltd which
has disclosable interests in the shares of the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO. For further
details, please refer to pages 33 to 36 of this annual report.

Mr. Tse Chau Shing Mark (F &%), aged 60, is a non-executive
Director. Mr. Tse joined the Group in May 2009. He is currently an
independent business consultant and investor. Mr. Tse was previously
employed under various banking titles at The First National Bank
of Chicago (now part of JP Morgan Chase, a company listed on the
New York Stock Exchange) from 1975 to 1980, and subsequently as
a director of Hill Samuel Merchant Bank (now part of Lloyds Bank
plc, a company quoted on the London Stock Exchange) till 1987. He
was appointed as the managing director of Tractebel Pacific Limited in
1987 and remained full time in this position until 1993. Since 1994.
Mr. Tse has worked as an independent business consultant for over 20
multinational companies on different assignments. He has 20 years of
experience in advising European and US companies on joint ventures
in China and South East Asia. Among his various duties, Mr. Tse is
also senior advisor of Caledonia Investments plc, a company listed on
the London Stock Exchange and a shareholder of the Company. He
obtained bachelor and master degrees in Engineering from University
of Cambridge and a master degree in Business Administration from
University of Chicago. Mr. Tse has disclosable personal interests in
the shares of the Company under the provisions of Division 3 of Part
XV of the SFO. For further details, please refer to page 33 to 36 of this
annual report.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yang Donghui (5% ##), aged 67, is an independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Yang has been working in the China National
Textile & Apparel Council (formerly known as the China Textile
Industry Department and China Textile General Chambers) since
1977 and is currently the vice president of this organisation. He has
been the president of the National Association of Domestic Textile
Products Industry since 1999. He has been an independent non-
executive director of Luolai Home Textile Co., Ltd. (Stock Code:
002293), a company listed on the Main Board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (“SZSE”), since 7 July 2007, Hunan Mendale Hometextile
Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 002397), a company listed on the Main Board
of the SZSE, since 5 March 2007 and Zhejiang Golden Eagle Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 600232), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Shanghai Stock Exchange, since June 2008. Mr. Yang joined
the Group in November 2006. He graduated from Department of
Chemical Engineering of Tsinghua University in 1970.

Mr. Lau Ying Kit (2|3 4) , aged 40, is an independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Lau is currently the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 03683), a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
a director of Adex Mining Inc. (Stock Code: ade), a listed company
listed on the TSX Venture Exchange in Canada. Mr. Lau is a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and holds a Master’s Degree in Finance from the City University of
Hong Kong. He has more than 14 years of experience in financial
and accounting in China and Hong Kong. He joined the Group in
November 2006.

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Z&{Z) , aged 39, is an independent
non-executive Director. Mr. Lo has more than 10 years of working
experience in investment banking and advising on corporate finance.
Mr. Lo is currently an executive director and a deputy general
manager of Guotai Junan Capital Limited. Mr. Lo also had three
years of experience in the field of auditing and accounting. Mr. Lo
is a member of the American Institute of CPA and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He obtained his
bachelor degree in commerce from University of British Columbia in
1995. He joined the Group in May 2010.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Ching Yi (fR5%#%) , aged 38, is the company secretary of
the Company. Ms. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants. She has over 16 years of
experience in auditing, accounting and finance in an international
accounting firm and listed companies. She is currently the company
secretary of Zheda Lande Scitech Limited (Stock Code: 8106),
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange and the company secretary of ShiFang Holding Limited
(Stock Code: 1831), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Ms. Chan joined the Group in August 2010.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Shen Hong (L)%) , aged 46, is the internal audit controller of
the Group. She completed her professional accounting studies at
Zhejiang Long March Finance School and has more than 16 years
of experience in finance. Before joining the Group in March 2003,
she worked in Kingdom Creative as the head of finance management
department.
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It is the Board’s pleasure in presenting their annual report on the
affairs of the Group together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 60.

DIVIDEND

At a meeting of the Board held on 15 March 2013, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK7 cents per
ordinary share of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2012. The proposed final dividend, if approved by the shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, will be paid
to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 17 June 2013.

RESERVES
Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 64.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s distributable
reserves calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands amounted to RMB640,394,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB639,470,000).

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2012 amounted to approximately RMB754,300
(31 December 2011: RMB742,800).

EFEMAREAKERE_FT——_F+-A
=t BLEFEARAEEBNFRERKCEZM
B o

FEXK
ARAR—RREBEBRAR EXEWNBAFN
EBEN I RRMIE17

ES
AEEFEREHANFORNAHERER

BRE
R_E—=ZFZA+HEASRTrEECEes
EEeEFREHE_T——F+-A=1+—H
I FERAKRBERARQT L BAR7E - =
RARFEEREREAFTRG EHE B RHR
BEMRZZT—=FNATtAZIEAAGRR
Z iz R EIR A o

(GRS
AEEAE R BB BN BT 1A SR
BHE-

A 73K f#
R-ZE——F+-_A=+—HB ARaEE
FAEBESARATENT LS REHEARE
640,394,000t (ZZE——F+ A =+—H: A
R #639,470,0007T) °

B
REBREZE-Z——F+-_A=1+—HILFE
TEHMEEE R HEMBRHARK754,3007C (=
——F+-A=+—8: AR742,8007T) °




SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Group are set out
in note 30 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 10.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
acquired property, plant and equipment of approximately
RMB37,970,000. Details of the movements are set out in note 14 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
During the year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date of this
report, the Directors were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ren Wei Ming (Chairman)
Mr. Shen Yueming

Mr. Zhang Hong Wen

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert
Mr. Tse Chau Shing Mark

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Donghui

Mr. Lau Ying Kit

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson

Report of the Directors
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Pursuant to article 87 of the article of association of the Company (the
“Articles”), one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at each annual
general meeting of the Company provided that every Director shall
be subject to retirement at least once every three years and being
eligible offer themselves for re-election. In accordance with article
87 of the Articles, Mr. Zhang Hong Wen, Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert
and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson shall retire from office by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting. The three retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed to be re-elected at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Group which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party to and in which
a Director had a material interest in, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2012 except as disclosed under the section headed
“Connected Transactions” below and note 35 to the financial
statements.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) and the Board considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent in accordance with Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate.

Details of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements.
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The remunerations of the senior management of the Company, during
the year ended 31 December 2012 fall within the following bands:

RMBO — RMB500,000 AREEOTTE ARS500,0007T

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 26 to 29.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2012, the Directors and their associates had the
following interests in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of the SFO, which were recorded or required to be recorded in
the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules:

Long positions in shares of the Company (the “Shares”)

Report of the Directors
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BREEIETEER
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Total percentage of
Personal Corporate number of issued share
Name of Director EEpA interests interests Shares held capital (%)
(Note 1)
HERTRA
fBAESR £EER FRROAE BOEI%)
(Hrit1)
Mr. Ren Wei Ming EHEERSE A 12,072,000 279,200,000 291,272,000 46.52
(Note 2)
(Bat2)
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BEeEEE - 67,000,000 67,000,000 10.70
(Note 3)
(B1at3)
Mr. Tse Chau Shing Mark B B ST AR 17,550,000 - 17,550,000 2.80
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Notes:

1. The Shares are registered under the names of the Directors who are the

beneficial shareholders.

2. Mr. Ren Wei Ming holds approximately 76.38% of the issued share
capital of Kingdom Investment (BVI) (as defined below). Mr. Ren
therefore holds a controlling interest in Kingdom Investment (BVI)
and is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by
Kingdom Investment (BVI).

3. Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert and Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie Sau Kat, the
spouse of Mr. Ngan, holds approximately 51.00% and 23.00% of the
issued share capital of Millionfull International (as defined below) and
50.22% and 22.33% of the issued share capital of Millionfull Company
Limited, respectively. Mr. Ngan therefore holds controlling interests in
both Millionfull International and Millionfull Company Limited and
is deemed under the SFO to be interested in 64,800,000 Shares, i.e.
10.41%, held by Millionfull International and 2,200,000 Shares, i.e.
0.35%, held by Millionfull Company Limited.

Share options
During the year ended 31 December 2012, no share options were
granted to the Directors or any of their associates.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none of the
Directors or their associates had or were deemed to have any interest
or short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were recorded or required to
be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party or parties to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director, as at 31 December 2012, the
following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company, had interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company which were recorded or required to be
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO:

Report of the Directors
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Long positions in Shares RG R
Approximately
percentage
Number of of issued
Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares share capital (%)
HEBRITRAE
BRREE 8% RIDEE A E D (%)
Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 279,200,000 44.59
(“Kingdom Investment (BVI)”) (Note 1)
Kingdom Investment Holdings Limited ER#AEA
(I'Kingdom Investment (BVI) 1) (A#7t1)
Millionfull International Co., Ltd. Beneficial owner 64,800,000 10.35
(“Millionfull International”) (Note 2)
Millionfull International Co., Ltd. EnEAA
(I'Millionfull International |) (47/7#2)
Caledonia Investments plc Beneficial owner 66,825,000 10.67

Caledonia Investments plc EnEEA
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Notes:

1. Kingdom Investment (BVI) is owned as to 76.38% by Mr. Ren Wei
Ming, an executive Director and substantial shareholder of the

Company.

2. Millionfull International is owned as to 51.00% by Mr. Ngan Kam Wai
Albert, a non-executive Director, and 23.00% by Ms. Ngan Chan Kattie
Sau Kat, the spouse of Mr. Ngan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, the Company
had not been notified by any person, other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company, who had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded
or required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the
Company passed on 15 November 2006, the Company adopted a
share option scheme (the “Scheme”).

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may at its discretion
grant options to: (i) any Director, employee, consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a
company in which the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such
company (“Affiliate”); or (ii) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of
which or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any Director, employee, consultant, professional, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or
an Affiliate; or (iii) a company beneficially owned by any Director,
employee, consultant, professional, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
adviser of or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate.
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The overall limit on the number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Scheme and any other schemes must not exceed 30% of
the Shares in issue from time to time. Subject to the aforesaid limit,
the total number of Shares available for issue under options which
may be granted under the Scheme and any other schemes must not,
in aggregate, exceed 60,000,000 Shares, being 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at 12 December 2006, the date of
listing of the Shares, unless separate shareholders’” approval has been
obtained.

The maximum entitlement for any one participant under the Scheme
shall not in any 12-month period up to the date of grant exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The period within which the options must be exercised will be
specified by the Board at the time of the grant, and must expire no
later than 10 years from the effective date of the Scheme.

The subscription price for any Share shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of grant of the relevant option,
which must be a business day, (ii) an amount equivalent to the
average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the relevant option and (iii) the nominal
value of a share.

The Company granted 9,100,000 share options under the Scheme on
9 July 2010. 3,640,000 share options were exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2012. As at the date of this report, the Company
had 5,460,000 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 0.87% of the Company’s Shares in issue.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS” INTERESTS IN
CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance have been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and any controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2012.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2012.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, sales to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for approximately 22.85% of the
Group's total sales for the year and sales to the Group’s largest
customer amounted to approximately 6.34%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 48.82% of
the total purchases for the year and purchase from the Group's largest
supplier amounted to approximately 11.90%.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any interests in the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers noted above.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group entered into
the following continuing connected transactions with its connected
persons. The transactions constituted “continuing connected
transactions” for the Company under the Listing Rules.
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Lease agreement

On 30 December 2011,
Zhejiang Jinyuan with Kingdom Creative pursuant to which Zhejiang
Jinyuan has leased a property located at Building 13 to 16, Henggang
Xing Heng Road, Haiyan County, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, from
Kingdom Create as one of the Group’s office, for a term commencing
from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2014 at an annual rental of
RMB200,000. Kingdom Creative is an associate of Mr. Ren Wei Ming
and hence a connected person of the Company. Rental and other
terms for this lease arrangement was negotiated between the parties

a lease agreement was entered into by

on arm’s length basis with reference to the then prevailing market
rates. As each of the percentage ratios for such lease agreement is less
than 0.1%, the transaction under this lease agreement is exempted
from all reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above
continuing connected transaction and confirmed that the transactions
has been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company;

(ii)  either (a) on normal commercial terms; or (b) where there is
no available comparable terms, on terms no less favorable to
the Company than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, there was
no other transaction which needs to be disclosed as a connected
transaction in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2012.
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BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2012 are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its listed shares during the
year ended 31 December 2012. Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s listed shares
during the year ended 31 December 2012.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles and
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands.

PENSION SCHEMES
Details of the Group’s pension scheme are set out in note 2.4 and
note 7 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the
year ended 31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
Set out below is information disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the
Listing Rules:

As at 31 December 2012, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates had interests in businesses which compete or are likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
pursuant to the Listing Rules, except for Mr. Ren Wei Ming (“Mr.
Ren”), who holds directorships and/or interests respectively, either
directly and/or through Kingdom Investment (BVI) (a controlling
shareholder of the Company), in certain private companies (the
“Private Companies”).
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The Private Companies are engaged in the silk and/or silk products
manufacturing and/or trading industry (the “Excluded Business”),
which are fundamentally different from the products manufactured by
the Group.

Mr. Ren undertakes, subject to the exceptions mentioned in the
Prospectus, that he will not, and will procure that his associates will
not (a) either on his own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, directly or indirectly be interested or
involved or engaged in or acquire or hold an interest (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent, consultant, employee or
otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) in any business
which is or is about to be engaged in any business which competes or
is likely to compete directly or indirectly with the Group’s business,
those other businesses of the Group as set out in the Prospectus, in
Hong Kong, the PRC and any other country or jurisdiction to which
the Group markets or sells its products and/or in which any member
of the Group carries on business mentioned above from time to
time (“Restricted Activity”), or (b) either on his own account or in
conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or company, or
as a principal, shareholder, partner, agent, consultant, employee or
otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise, directly or
indirectly, solicit, interfere with or endeavour to entice away from
any member in the Group any person, firm, company or organization
who to its or his knowledge is now or has been a customer, supplier
or employee of any member in the Group.

By reasons of the fact that the Excluded Business does not pose any
direct or indirect actual competition with the Group’s business and
that Mr. Ren has already given an undertaking as above referred
to, the Group is therefore capable of carrying on its business
independently of, and at arms’ length from, the Excluded Business as
described above.
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Presently, Mr. Ren has no plans to inject the aforesaid Excluded
Business into the Group.

The Company has received from Kingdom Investment (BVI) and
Mr. Ren an annual confirmation that it/he has fully complied with
its/his obligations under the deed of non-competition in favour of
the Company dated 27 November 2006 during the year ended 31
December 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group's principal corporate governance practices are set out on
pages 46 to 55.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 16 May
2013 to 20 May 2013, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to determine who are
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong
branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at 26th Floor,
Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registrations not later than 4:30 p.m. on 15 May 2013.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 13 June
2013 to 17 June 2013, both days inclusive, during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to determine who
are entitled to the proposed final dividend, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
11 June 2013. The proposed final dividend, subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting, will be paid to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 17 June 2013.
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AUDITORS

Ernst & Young will retire and a resolution for their re-appointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ren Wei Ming
Chairman
Haiyan County, PRC, 15 March 2013
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF THE LISTING RULES
The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate
governance practices and procedures with a view to being a
transparent and responsible organization which is open and
accountable to the Company’s shareholders. The Directors believe
that good corporate governance practices are increasingly important
for maintaining and promoting investor confidence. In the past, the
Board and the management of the Company have been continually
reviewing and enhancing its corporate governance practices. The
Group's corporate governance principles emphasize the importance
of a quality Board, effective internal controls and accountability to
all the shareholders of the Company. The Company has applied the
principles as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”)
and Corporate Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed below,
the Company has complied with the code provisions as set out in the
Code for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company did
not have any officer with the title of “chief executive officer”. Mr.
Ren Wei Ming, who acts as the chairman of the Company, is also
responsible for overseeing the general operations of the Group. The
Board will meet regularly to consider major matters affecting the
operations of the Company. The Board considers that this structure
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Company and is conducive to
strong and consistent leadership, enabling the Company to operate
efficiently.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiries
with all Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the provisions of the Model Code and the Company’s
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2012 and up to the date of the Company’s
announcement of annual results for the year ended 31 December
2012.
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THE BOARD

The Board consists of 8 Directors, 3 of whom are executive
Directors, 2 of whom are non-executive Directors and 3 of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. The functions and duties
conferred on the Board include: convening shareholders’ meetings
and reporting on the work of the Board to the shareholders at
shareholders’” meetings as may be required by the applicable
laws, implementing resolutions passed at shareholders’ meetings,
determining the Company’s business plans and investment plans,
formulating the Company’s annual budget and final accounts,
formulating the Company’s proposals for dividend and bonus
distributions as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties
as conferred on it by the Articles and the applicable laws. The senior
management is delegated the authority and responsibilities by the
Board for the day-to-day management and operations of the Group.

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and operating
performance of the Company, and considers and approves the overall
strategies and policies of the Company.

The composition of the Board and attendance of individual Directors
at meetings of the Board, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee during the period under review, was as follows:

Directors =

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Ren Wei Ming E#EREE
(Chairman of the Board) (ZZFELfE)

Mr. Shen Yueming ILRRRR LA

Mr. Zhang Hong Wen T EE

Non-executive Directors kBTES

Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert BeBEE

Mr. Tse Chau Shing Mark AEBEE

Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES

Mr. Yang Donghui BRIELE
(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) (FWZEELRE)

Mr. Lau Ying Kit BIRGEEE
(Chairman of the Audit Committee) (BEZEE2LRE)

Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEERLE
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee) (1BEZEE1)
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The biographical details of the current Board members are set out
under the section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 26 to 29 of this annual report.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time. The independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Board at all times
met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least
one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise, and the independent non-executive directors
represented over one-third of the Board.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Board members have separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management to fulfil their duties and, upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expense. All Directors
also have access to the company secretary who is responsible for
ensuring that the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and
regulations, are followed. An agenda and accompanying Board/
committee papers are distributed to the Directors/Board committee
members with reasonable notice in advance of the meetings. Minutes
of Board meetings and meetings of Board committees, which records
in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board and decisions
reached, including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting
views expressed, are kept by the company secretary and are available
for inspection by the Directors.

Pursuant to article 87 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office
by rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years and being eligible for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY
The following statement, which sets out the responsibilities of the
Directors in relation to the financial statements, should be read
in conjunction with, but be distinguished from, the Independent
Auditors’ Report on pages 58 to 59 which states the reporting
responsibilities of the Group's auditors.

Annual Report and Accounts
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which gives a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group.

Accounting Policies

The Directors consider that in preparing the financial statements, the
Group has used appropriate accounting policies that are consistently
applied, and that all applicable accounting standards have been
followed.

Accounting Records

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that the Group keeps
accounting records which disclose with reasonable accuracy the
financial position of the Group and which enable the preparation of
financial statements in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the applicable
accounting standards.

Safeguarding Assets

The Directors are responsible for taking all reasonable and necessary
steps to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregularities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual.

The Company does not have any officer with the title of “chief
Mr. Ren Wei Ming, who acts as the Chairman
of the Company, is also responsible for overseeing the general

executive officer”.

operations of the Group. The Board will meet regularly to consider
major matters affecting the operations of the Company. The Board
considers that this structure will not impair the balance of power and
authority between the Board and the management of the Company
and is conducive to strong and consistent leadership, enabling the
Company to operate efficiently.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2013, whereas each of the independent
non-executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company and is appointed for an initial term of 3 years
commencing from 1 January 2013.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Directors are
provided with regular updates on the Company’s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each
Director to discharge their duties. In addition, all Directors are
encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company updates
the Directors on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements from time to time, to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Company has also organized a briefing sessions conducted by Messrs.
Sidley Austin for all the Directors covering the topics on directors’
responsibilities, corporate governance practices and disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules and the SFO. All the Directors
have attended such briefing session and have been provided with
training material for reference.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITY INSURANCE
AND INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged liability insurance to indemnify its
Directors and officers in respect of legal actions against the Directors.
During the year ended 31 December 2012, no claim had been made
against the Directors and officers of the Company.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company Secretary
attended relevant professional training for not less than 15 hours.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee considers and recommends to the
Board the remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company
to the Directors and senior management. The remuneration of all
Directors and senior management is subject to regular monitoring
by the Remuneration Committee to ensure that the levels of their
remuneration and compensation are appropriate. In compliance
with the amendments to the Listing Rules which became effective
on 1 April 2012, Mr. Yang Donghui, an existing member of the
Remuneration Committee and an independent non-executive
Director, was appointed as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company in place of Mr. Zhang Hong Wen, an
executive Director, with effect from 16 March 2012. Mr. Zhang Hong
Wen, together with Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson, an independent
non-executive Director remain as members of the Remuneration
Committee. In the meantime, the Board adopted revised terms of
reference for the Remuneration Committee on 16 March 2012.
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The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once every year to
review the remuneration policy and structure and determination of
the annual remuneration packages of the executive Directors and
the senior executives and other related matters. The Remuneration
Committee shall make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management remuneration.

One meeting was held during the year ended 31 December
2012. At the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policies of the Directors and the senior management.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 16
March 2012 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Code with effect from 16 March 2012. The primary functions of the
Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, based on skills, knowledge and experience,
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy. The Nomination
Committee comprises one executive Director and two independent
non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Shen Yueming, Mr. Lau Ying
Kit and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson (Chairman of the Nomination
Committee).

One meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2012.
At the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee
also determined the policy for the nomination of Directors and the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted by the
Nomination Committee to select and recommend candidates for
directorship during the year.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2012, the remuneration paid to
the Company’s external auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out as follows:

RENRE

Services rendered

EAZ R

Audit services

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to the 2012
financial statements are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” on pages 58 to 59. Save as disclosed above and in
the section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report”, the Company did
not engage Ernst & Young for any non-audit services during the year
under review.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in compliance with Rules 3.21
and 3.22 of the Listing Rules and with written terms of reference
in compliance with the Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control systems of the Group and to provide advice and
comments to the Board.

The Audit Committee is responsible for determining the policy for
the corporate governance of the Company performing the corporate
governance duties as below:

J to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations;

J to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the directors and senior management;

J to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with all legal and regulatory requirements (where
applicable);

J to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors of the Group; and

J to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Lau Ying
Kit, Mr. Yang Donghui and Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson, of which are
all independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Lau Ying Kit, who has
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in accounting
matters, was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

In compliance with the amendments to the Listing Rules which
became effective on 1 April 2012, the Board adopted revised terms of
reference for the Audit Committee on 16 March 2012.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee
held two meetings. At the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed
the interim and the final results for 2012 with the external auditors
and also the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control functions.
The Audit Committee also reviewed the Company’s progress in
implementing the corporate governance requirements as set out in the
Code.
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The Directors are collectively responsible for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group which have
been prepared on a going concern basis, and complies with the
requirements of the Listing Rules. There has been no disagreement
between the Directors and the Audit Committee regarding the
selection and appointment of the external auditors.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has in place sound and effective internal controls to
safeguard shareholders’ investment and assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The Board is responsible for monitoring the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control and risk management systems
on a regular basis so as to ensure that the internal control and risk
management systems in place are adequate.

The Company has established written policies and procedures
applicable to all operating units to ensure the effectiveness of
internal controls. The Company also has a process for identifying,
evaluating, and managing the significant risks to the achievement
of its operational objective. This process is subject to continuous
improvement and was in place throughout 2012 and up to the
date of this report. The day-to-day operation is entrusted to the
individual department, which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance, and is required to strictly adhere to the polices set by
the Board. The Company carries out reviews on the effectiveness of
the internal control systems from time to time in order to ensure that
they are able to meet and deal with the dynamic and ever changing
business environment.

The Board has conducted a review and assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control systems including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
during the year ended 31 December 2012. The assessment was made
after discussions with the management of the Company, its internal
auditors, and its internal control adviser and a review performed
by the Audit Committee. The Board is of the view that the existing
internal control system is adequate and effective.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the “EGM”) (including

@

maki
calle
[ ]

54 2012 Annual Report — & — —F &£

ng proposals/moving a resolution at the EGM to be
d by the Board)

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company (the “Eligible
Shareholder(s)”) shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require
an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition, including
putting forward proposals or moving a resolution at the
EGM.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to require an EGM to be
called by the Board for the purpose of making proposals
or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit a
written requisition (the “Requisition”) signed by the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned to the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 28th Floor,
Three Pacific Place, No. 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong, for the attention of the Company Secretary.

The Requisition must state clearly the name of the
Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, his/her/their
shareholding in the Company, the reason(s) to convene
an EGM, the agenda of the EGM including the details of
the business(es) proposed to be transacted at the EGM,
signed by the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity
and the shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder will
be verified with the Company’s branch share registrar.
If the Requisition is found to be proper and in order,
the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene
an EGM within 2 months and/or include the proposal
or the resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder
at the EGM after the deposit of the Requisition. On the
contrary, if the Requisition has been verified as not in
order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will
not convene an EGM and/or include the proposal or the
resolution proposed by the Eligible Shareholder at the
EGM.

If within 21 days of the deposit of the Requisition, the
Board has not advised the Eligible Shareholders of any
outcome to the contrary and fails to proceed to convene
such EGM, the Eligible Shareholder(s) himself/herself/
themselves may do so in accordance with the M&A,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the Eligible Shareholder(s)
concerned by the Company.
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(i) Procedures for sending enquiries to the board
Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 28th Floor,
Three Pacific Place, No. 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong by
post or email to kingdom@kingdom-china.com for the attention
of the investors relation department of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Group firmly believes the importance of communicating with
the investment community and the shareholders in attaining a high
level of transparency. Since its listing, the Group has maintained
various communication channels with analysts and fund managers
such as one-to-one meetings, telephone communications, and press
releases. The general meetings of the Company provide a platform
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board as well as Chairmen of the Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee and Audit Committee or if, in
their absence, other members of the respective committees, and
where applicable, the independent board committee, are available
to answer questions at the shareholders’ meetings. The Company
endeavours to provide timely and accurate information to the
investors to enhance the understanding of the investors about the
linen industry, as well as the business development strategy and
direction of the Group.

The Group will continue to maintain a close relationship with
investors and develop greater understanding about the Group for
international investors, to enhance investors’ confidence in the
Group.

There is no change in the Articles during the year ended 31
December 2012.

DISCLAIMER

The contents of the section headed “Shareholders’ Rights” are for
reference and disclosure compliance purposes only. The information
does not represent and should not be regarded as legal or other
professional advice from the Company to the shareholders.
Shareholders should seek their own independent legal or other
professional advice as to their rights as shareholders of the Company.
The Company disclaims all liabilities and losses incurred by its
shareholders in reliance on any contents of this section headed
“Shareholders” Rights”.

(ii)
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B M % A R

To the shareholders of Kingdom Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingdom
Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, “the
Group”) set out on pages 60 to 152, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December
2012, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, the accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditors Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

15 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

BOHEFER

Year ended 31 December 2012 B Z=F——F+=H=+—HIFFE

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income and gains

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Other expenses

Finance costs

Share of profits and losses of an
associate

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax expense
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Attributable to:
Owners of the parent

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE PARENT

Basic

Diluted

A

SHE R AR

EH

Hh e RS e
HE RN HAX
TTERFX

H A
FAFERAN

FE15 — B & 1~ 7]

i A K2 518

Bk Bt A0 3% A

A
F R

1
REHER A

BAREERESREAA
EiEERER

BN

Details of the dividends payable and proposed for the year are
disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements.
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2012 2011

—E-—F —E——F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

oka ARET R AREF T

5 718,912 710,960

(509,612) (482,957)

209,300 228,003

5 8,320 9,403

(34,358) (30,268)

(39,821) (39,191)

(3,544) (8,165)

6 (12,848) (14,720)

18 (285) 17

7 126,764 145,079

10 (32,584) (41,940)
94,180 103,139

11 94,180 103,139
13 AR¥0.157T AR®0.177T
13 AR®0.157T AR®0.177T
FR RS RERR S BRI IS mRMI 1215 -




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

B EE WS X

Year ended 31 December 2012 #E-F——F+-HA=+—HIFE

2012 2011
—E——F ===tz
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R 94,180 103,139
Exchange differences on translation of BINEBITENIE R Z8

foreign operations 210 (786)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRAEHEKBAEE

FOR THE YEAR 94,390 102,353
Attributable to: FEAh

Owners of the parent ISTNEIEZ YN 94,390 102,353
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Consolidated Statement

B OF Bt B AR 0 &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment
Prepaid land lease payments
Intangible asset

Investment in an associate
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories

Trade and notes receivables

Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Derivative financial instruments

Pledged deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables

Other payables and accruals
Interest-bearing bank loans
Amount due to a related company
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

62 2012 Annual Report — & — —F 43

HRBEE

TS AN IR
BIZEE
R—REBE R BNIRE
EXERIBEE

FRBEERE
RBEE

3

EWE SRR EERE

AR W kAR
R

TESMTA

REEREEERAN

RekBReEED

MENEERE
RBAE

FERT B 5 AR

Hit BRI RTARRE M
AHERITER

FE 1 —RIREE 2 RIFKIA
e i IR

mEAERE
RBEEFE
EERERARDAE

of Financial Position

31 December

31 December

2012 2011

—2--F %

+=A +=A

=+—H =+—H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARET ARETF T
14 366,033 378,226
15 56,579 34,032
16 10,818 11,323
18 5,784 6,069
19 8,322 7,004
447,536 436,654

20 240,570 235,995
21 218,077 149,338
22 43,393 21,972
25 68 1,033
26 35,900 37,600
26 163,643 163,502
701,651 609,440

27 43,186 58,349
28 43,506 30,947
29 215,684 164,100
23 55 =
13,428 22,415

315,859 275,811

385,792 333,629

833,328 770,283




Consolidated

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Deferred tax liabilities
Total non-current liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY

Equity attributable to owners of

the parent

Issued capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Total equity

Ren Wei Ming

1E4E A
Director

EF

FRBEE
ELEHIAERAE
FnRBAERE
BEFE

s

BREIEE ARHER

BERITEA
Gl
EEARRE

Statement of Financial Position

B O B Bk R 3R

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

—E-—F —E——%F

+=A +=A

=t—H =+—H

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
it ARET ARETF T
19 10,449 8,420
10,449 8,420

822,879 761,863

30 6,301 6,272
32 781,041 720,265
12 35,537 35,326
822,879 761,863

Shen Yueming
Tt BB A
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EHERSH X

Year ended 31 December 2012 B Z=F——F+=H=+—HIFFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARERAES
Share Proposed
Issued Share Merger  Statutory option  Exchange final  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  dividend profits Total
BRE B#

BRIRE  ROEE AHREE  EERE W EXRE AHRR  REEA st
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTL AREBTT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR
(note 30) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32) (note 32)
(Bitso)  (Hagsz)  (Wits2)  (W#32)  (B#32) (W)

At1 January 2011 WZE——%-A-H 6,272 268,001 196,816 44,511 514 (1,155) 26,488 143,523 684,970
Profit for the year ERgEH = - - - - - - 103,139 103,139
Exchange differences on translation of BIEBIENELZR
foreign operations - - - - - (786) - - (786)
Total comprehensive income for the year 2 EAREEHR - - - = = (786) - 103,139 102353
Final 2010 dividend declared BER-F-FERABE = = = = = - (26489 - (26,488)
Proposed final 2011 dividend BE-Z——FRERS - - - - - - 35326 (35,326) -
Transfer from retained profits ERARERH = = = 14,505 = = = (14,505) =
Equity-settled share option arrangement B4 B RIEL 4 - - - - 1,028 - - - 1,028
At31 December 2011 and 1 January 2012 R=F——F+-A=+—H
k-E——%#-F-H 6,272 268,001* 196,816 59,016 1,542* (1,941)% 35326 196,831* 761,863
Profit for the year FREF - - - - = = = 94,180 94,180
Exchange differences on translation of BIEBIENELEE
foreign operations - - - - - 210 - - 210
Issue of share capital BOBRA 29 2,180 - - (1,028) - = = 1,181
Total comprehensive income for the year — FR2EMzHEHE - - - - - - - - -
Final 2011 dividend declared BER-T——FRERE - - - - - - (35,326) - (35,326)
Proposed final 2012 dividend #F-T-_ERERE - - - - - - 35,537 (35,537) -
Transfer from retained profits EEARZDEN - - - 12,242 - - - (12,242) -
Equity-settled share option arrangement I ERRIELH - - - - 771 - - - 771
At31 December 2012 R-E-—%+-F=+-B 6301 270,181  196816*  71258*  1,85* (730F 3557 243232 822,879

¥ These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * ZERBREEE HIBMRIEERZ &I EE
RMB781,041,000 (2011: RMB720,265,000) in the consolidated AR #781,041,000T (ZF——F AREK
statement of financial position. 720,265,0007T ) °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHEERER

Year ended 31 December 2012 HZ=—F——F+=—H=+—HI FEF

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Share of profits and losses of an associate

Fair value gains on derivative instruments —
transactions not qualifying as hedges

Equity-settled share option expense

Depreciation

Amortization of prepaid land lease payments

Amortization of an intangible asset

Reversal of provision against inventories

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment

Provision for doubtful debts

Finance costs

Bank interest income

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Increase in trade and notes receivables

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

Decrease in derivative financial instruments

Decrease in trade payables

Increase in other payables and accruals

Decrease in an amount due from a related party

Increase in an amount due to a related party

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid

Net cash flows from operating activities

RETHNRERE
B A5 A it 7

FEEIRH ¢

FE {5 —FRIBE & A Aa Al e 18

TEBERIEH T ZITET R
RPHZARBESE

AR A E B AR X

e

3 AE & TR R IR 5

BB EHH

FEEFED

HEME KWELREEE
BB

REEEE

BTSN

RITHBUA

FE (Em,md

e B 5 Rk I R W R A3 AN
BN S K E A EWGRIR

($5h0) R

TEERI AR

e E SRR UK

H A & BOR R IEEE B FE AN
et — &2 BE 5 SRR

FE A — 2 BESE 77 sRIAIE AN

RERHELNRE
BEAEHR

RERPNRSREFHE

2012 2011
—E-=-F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREF T
126,764 145,079
285 (17)

(68) 2,680

771 1,028
49,644 47,704
859 867

599 596
(178) (3,225)

33 1,350

26 979
12,848 14,720
(1,546) 2,787)
190,037 208,974
(4,397) 46,664
(68,765) (29,883)
(21,421) 13,053
1,033 -
(15,163) (59,463)
12,559 3,355

- 52

55 -
93,938 182,752
(40,860) (33,517)
53,078 149,235

Kingdom Holdings Limited £3Z#=RER A 7 65



66 2012 Annual Report — 2 — —F F 3§

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

EHBEETRER

Year ended 31 December 2012 B Z=F——F+=H=+—HIFFE

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
Purchases of an item of intangible asset
Purchases of prepaid land lease payments
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant
and equipment
Interest received
Decrease in pledged deposits

Net cash flows used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Paid-in capital received
New bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
Dividends and interest paid

Net cash flows generated from/(used in)
financing activities

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rates changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity
of less than three months when acquired

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the
statement of financial position

REFHNRERE
BMEME BENMERFEER

BEETEERHA

BE B SRANNKIEA
HEME  BWFERZHBEAEE
1S 30R

EHF S

BEERBFFORD

RERDMANREREFHE
MEZBNRERE

BERBREN
FIERITE R
BEBITER

B IRE RAE
MEFTDEE (FA) K

BEmEFHE

REeRRESEURD FE

FURERREEEY

Ry EFE

FREERBEEEEY

RERREEENERIN

RE MRTTHERR

ESREREIHALNR=EAN

EIEAE TR

BBRIR IR & K
RaeEEY

2012 2011
—E--F —E——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTF T
(37,314) (44,331)
(94) (11,919)
(23,398) -
494 474
1,546 2,787
1,700 24,457
(57,066) (28,532)
1,181 -
330,916 300,864
(279,332) (439,545)
(48,838) (41,208)
3,927 (179,889)
(61) (59,186)
163,502 223,464
202 (776)
163,643 163,502
163,643 163,502
163,643 163,502




NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Investments in subsidiaries
Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other payables
Amount due to a subsidiary

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES

Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital
Reserves
Proposed final dividend

Total equity

Ren Wei Ming
4R

Director

EF

Statement of Financial Position

B %5 K &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

31 December 31 December

2012 2011
=F-=F I
+=ZA=+—-H +ZA=+—8
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt ARET T AERET T
IRBEE
R B R RHIEE 17 372,534 371,249
EREBEELE 372,534 371,249
REBEE
JEUR Y B A B 5RIA 24 283,153 278,195
ReRRESEED 26 2,064 1,870
MBEERE 285,217 280,065
REBAE
H b & 50E 28 - 230
R L S ESNETE ] 24 6,716 3,800
MEBEEE 6,716 4,030
REBEEFE 278,501 276,035
EEAERABEE
651,035 647,284
BEFE 651,035 647,284
e
BT 30 6,301 6,272
s 32 609,197 605,686
E R ds) 12 35,537 35,326
iy L 651,035 647,284

Shen Yueming
T BB
Director

EF
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R B &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

2.1
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

Kingdom Holdings Limited was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on 21
July 2006. The Company’s shares were listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12
December 2006.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale
of linen yarns.

The Company’s registered office address is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681 GT, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands; and the principal place of business is located
at Level 28, Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
(which include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for derivative financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (RMB’000), except when otherwise
indicated.

2.1

AEIEHR
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NN AR FE M 9 SR ik A Cricket Square,
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the
Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. All intra-group balances,
transactions, unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intra-group transactions and dividends are eliminated on
consolidation in full.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(i) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognizes (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(i) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognized in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.

2.1

B 5 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

MBELEE @
AptEE
EHMBRERBEARAMEN BRG]
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BROZMNBARNEE (BERBE) LA
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R B &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 BHRRBEENEE

70 2012 Annual Report — & — —F &£

DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first
time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards
— Severe Hyperinflation and

IFRS 1T Amendments

Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters
IFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments — Disclosures:
Transfers of Financial Assets
IAS 12 Amendments Amendments to IAS 12 Income
Taxes — Deferred Taxes:
Recovery of Underlying Assets

Other than as further explained below regarding the impact of
IFRS 7, the adoption of the above revised IFRSs does not have
significant impact on these financial statements.

The principal effects of amendments to IFRS 7 are as follows:

The amendments require additional disclosures about financial
assets that have been transferred but not derecognized to
enable users of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
to understand the relationship with those assets that have
not been derecognized and their associated liabilities. In
addition, the amendments require disclosures about the
entity’s continuing involvement in derecognized assets to
enable users to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated
with, such involvement. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011. Details of the
relevant disclosures are included in note 21 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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2.3

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R 3R Y &

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised

IFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

IFRS 1T Amendments

IFRS 7 Amendments

IFRS 9

IFRS 10

IFRS 11

IFRS 12

IFRS 13

IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and
IFRS 12 Amendments

IFRS 10, IFRS 12,
Amendments and
IAS 27 (Revised)

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-
time Adoption of International
Financial Reporting Standards
— Government Loans’

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures —
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’

Financial Instruments’

Consolidated Financial
Statements’
Joint Arrangements’

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities’
Fair Value Measurement’

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS
11 and IFRS 12 — Transition
Guidance’

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS
12 and IAS 27 (Revised) —
Investment Entities’

2.3

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+_-H=+—H
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Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 2.3 SHEMEEKRENR 2 (ERME
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA w0
STANDARDS (continued)
IAS 1 Amendments Amendments to IAS 1 CERR & =H2ERD (R &=t R0
Presentation of Financial FE1FZEFTA F1RZAEFT 258
Statements — Presentation of BH#HFz— 25 E M
Items of Other Comprehensive TEHMNZEA
Income’
IAS 19 Amendments Amendments to IAS 19 Fmployee CERR g &H2ERD (EER &=t 4R
Benefits' 1958 2 EFT A F19R BRI ES
#wF
IAS 27 (Revised) Separate Financial Statements’ (BERgER) BUyEHEX
B27%% (&IEFT)
IAS 28 (Revised) Investments in Associates and (BERgER) REZLAFLESE
Joint Ventures' F285% (L£1857) RELZIRET
IAS 32 Amendments Amendments to IAS 32 Financial CERR & =H2ER) (R &=t 281
Instruments: Presentation — SE325] ZAEFT A FE32R2EFT TR’
Offsetting Financial Assets and TE:25—##
Financial Liabilities’ THEERTH
BE
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production BB SRS BRBELEEERZ
Phase of a Surface Mine' REZES TR A
—2EE205%
Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of FREBE RZE—Z_FH
2009 - 2011 Cycle IFRSs issued in June 2012’ —ETNFE Moz %18 (B
—E——FBH MsmELER) 2
CHE
Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 january Z R—F—=F—f—HAZEHIEZFE
2013 lCTE
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2 R-FB—F—H— A2 EFHIEZ FE
2014 HfEJ £ 3K
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 january g R-F—AF—A—HXZEFEZFE
2015 Hifj R
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the REEEFEERERZENT REER
impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial application. (BERMBERELER) 2B -5 KE
So far, the Group considers that these new and revised IFRSs BRRZ S R ER] KRR BRELE
are unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results A) PARAIBEH AEBLE EERMBARR
of operations and financial position. EREATE-
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint venture

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual arrangement,
whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity. The joint venture operates as a separate entity in which
the Group and the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers stipulates
the capital contributions of the joint venture parties, the
duration of the joint venture and the basis on which the assets
are to be realised upon its dissolution. The profits or losses from
the joint venture’s operations and any distributions of surplus
assets are shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with the
terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(@) a subsidiary, if the Group/Company has unilateral
control, directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b)  a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group/Company does
not have unilateral control, but has joint control, directly
or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group/Company does not have
unilateral or joint control, but holds, directly or
indirectly, generally not less than 20% of the joint
venture’s registered capital and is in a position to
exercise significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with 1AS 39, if the Group/Company holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s registered
capital and has neither joint control of, nor is in a position
to exercise significant influence over, the joint venture.
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POLICIES (continued)

Associate

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a jointly-
controlled entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investment in an associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and reserves of an associate is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associate are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in the
associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

The results of an associate are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investment in an associate is treated
as a non-current asset and is stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for
sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and non-
current assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of
those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognized
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss of an
asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the
carrying amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortization) had no impairment loss been
recognized for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
an impairment loss is credited to the income statement in
the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person (i) has control or joint control over
the Group; (ii) has significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or a parent of the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies;

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)
(ii)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third party and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated
and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalized in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Plant and buildings 4.5%
Machinery 9.0%
Office equipment 18.0%
Motor vehicles 22.5%

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognized in the income statement in the year the
asset is derecognized is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)
Construction in progress represents a building under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment losses,
and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

Intangible asset

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortized over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortization period and the amortization method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. The useful life of the intangible asset of
the Group is 20 years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will
generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources
to complete the project and the ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is expensed
when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortized using the straight-line
basis over the commercial lives of the underlying products not
exceeding five to seven years, commencing from the date when
the products are put into commercial production.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalized at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together
with the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect
the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalized
finance leases, including prepaid land lease payments and
finance leases, are included in property, plant and equipment,
and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such
leases are charged to the income statement so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets, and rentals receivable under the operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases net of any incentive
received from the lessor are charged to the income statement
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognized on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

B 5 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

24 FESHBEME @

HE

NEERARNBALLDHRERAR (T8
EAEMARE) BREASEMAENEE 57
EREHE -NREHERKR HEEE
MR A TR REEEN RO RERTEAN
WEREH (TEEMNEHD) —HAK &
ARREEE R E TR - RIFEEACHI R
EHERANEE (BR LA EENFIA
ABEME) MAYE BEEREA AR
MEHHEEN G A ERFHREROR
RERE FRAENREXRATINBER
ks - MR AERANBEEBHX HLL

BERETEHBANMESNEEARR
BMERE HEREMGHIERFEHNE-

BERARBRE D EHERARDASLE
ABEANHEEIRREHE - WAKE S
BA BAAEEZEEHEEHENEERR
EIFRBEEAN MRFLEHER T U
MESREEMREREARER WA
SEAAEA BRELEHEERETINNE
SR LEA R EREENEE IR
BROEMNBERR-

KREREMP RN T A EBNRENS
WA RN HE AR B R AR

7

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#RER A A 79



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R B &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEME @

80 2012 Annual Report — 2 — —F F 3§

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group within the scope of IAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and loans and receivables, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. When financial assets are recognized initially, they
are measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments as defined by IAS 39.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in the statement of financial position at fair value with positive
net changes in fair value presented as other income and gains
and negative net changes in fair value presents as finance costs
in the income statement. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or interest earned on these financial
assets, which are recognized in accordance with the policies
set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria under IAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (held for trading) to assess whether the intent to
sell them in the near term is still appropriate. When, in rare
circumstances, the Group is unable to trade these financial
assets due to inactive markets and management’s intent to
sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the
Group may elect to reclassify them. The reclassification from
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss to loans
and receivables depends on the nature of the assets. This
evaluation does not affect any financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option at
designation, as these instruments cannot be reclassified after
initial recognition.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in the income statement. Reassessment only occurs
if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required.
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POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortized cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortization
is included in other income and gains in the income statement.
The loss arising from impairment is recognized in the income
statement in finance costs for loans or other expenses for
receivables.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognized when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;
. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is
recognized to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an
incurred “loss event”) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation
and observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

B 5 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R _-ZFE——#F+_-H=+—H

24 FESHHEBRE @

RIEBRESHEE @

MAEEEEEENEENGFRESREME
FE Rl B2 Al IRBEER
EHERERERAIER - W8 EERMIRE
RBEBEMNBAI D R ERH - )R F58E
BEEMNZGHE IEENEAEERNEE
MFELHRBERER -FEHBERT  AEE
MER—BEEBEE HEBREENMEER
BHERREAEERB O EEHHE

BitE -

NERNEARESEREBREE  HIRE
EJR 51| BRI & BR S 7N 55 B A R A SRE IR MY
ERRBEEENREETE-

EREERE
AEERBEREHRFEEEHIAETE
PRER-ReREEN —HEMEED R
BE-—RemEE—AHAeREEETRE
MEBITRKREEEVRERRE LN IR
HEEEH(ERLENBERZEMH]) BB
BEAHZATREEIZEATHEENDG
AARARBEEREELNTE MARTERL
Al SEfAET AV B TR AR RIRE BB SR A]
NEE—REEAS—AEFALRERE
BITE IR Z  F SRS FHIRR IR R
B RE AT REAS E ATRE S B 5 E 4
KA RBBRRMEFTRERERELE —@
Al ETE AR A -t B R AR RR R B R 5
PR MO B 1

Kingdom Holdings Limited €3Z#ZRAR A = 83



Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R B &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEME @

84 2012 Annual Report — & — —F &£

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the Group first
assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment
exists for financial assets that are individually significant,
or collectively for financial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assessed them for impairment. Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognized are not
included in collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognized in the income statement. Interest income continues
to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written
off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a future write-off is later
recovered, the recovery is credited to other expenses in the
income statement.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities of the Group within the scope of IAS 39 are
loans and borrowings. The Group determines the classification
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include interest-bearing bank
loans, trade payables, an amount due to a related party and
other payables.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank loans are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognized in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortization is included in finance costs in the
income statement.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if,
and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset
the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active
markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions and ask
price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction
costs. For financial instruments where there is no active
market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. These techniques include using recent arm'’s
length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
forward currency contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risk.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at
fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement,
except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash,
which are not restricted as to use.
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at
the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
deferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent that
it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the
end of each reporting period and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.
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POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited
to a deferred income account and is released to the income
statement over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by
equal annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount
of the asset and released to the income statement by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer,
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold; and

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial tree model, further details of which are
given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognized as at the beginning and end of
that period.

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

The Company grants the share options to its subsidiaries’
employees to exchange for their services provided to the
subsidiaries. Accordingly, in the Company’s statement of
financial position, the equity-settled share option expense,
which is recognized in the consolidated financial statements, is
treated as part of the “investments in subsidiaries”.
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POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognized for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Retirement benefits

Pursuant to the relevant regulations, the Group has participated
in a local municipal government retirement benefit scheme
(the “Scheme”), whereby the Group is required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of its employees to the
Scheme to fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the
Group. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
Scheme is to pay the ongoing required contributions under the
Scheme mentioned above. Contributions under the Scheme are
charged to profit or loss as incurred. There are no provisions
under the Scheme whereby forfeited contributions may be used
to reduce future contributions.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalized. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders and
declared, they are recognized as a liability.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognized in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 FESHBEME @

94 2012 Annual Report — & — —F &£

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on retranslation of a non-
monetary item is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item measured at
fair value (i.e., translation differences on the items those fair
value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income
or profit or loss are also recognized in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group at the exchange
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
income statements are translated into RMB at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognized in the income
statement.

INEE ()
BELKADNER  UINESF E M IEE TR
B RAVRRZHENERRE ZAD
BESIER UINESTEMIEERIER - KA
ErAnEBERIAMERKBE -SHMBEIH
EIH B PTE A M A E R R IE 5 AR R
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— B (BrEz REMEERENIEERER
AREBEAESEMNIELENELZRE T 5K
HEh2mEU sk B SR ©
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BERBRENRNERSRESAEENZT
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BER/ARK-
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

There is no significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the financial statements arising from the judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, made by management in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

(@  Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or
the deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The Group’s management determines the deferred tax
assets based on the enacted or substantively enacted tax
rates and laws and best knowledge of profit projections
of the Group for coming years during which the deferred
tax assets are expected to be utilised. Management will
revise the assumptions and profit projections at the end
of the reporting period.

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b)  Impairment of trade and notes receivables and other
receivables
Impairment of trade and notes receivables and other
receivables is made based on assessment of the
recoverability of trade and notes receivables and other
receivables. The identification of bad and doubtful
receivables requires management judgement and
estimates. Provision is made when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the
debts. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, the differences will
impact the carrying value of the receivables and related
asset impairment charge or write-back in the period in
which the estimate has been changed.

(c)  Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase
the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives or management will write off
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. REIHEH

For management purposes, the Group is organised into one RTRER AEBWBEER/—BRE—XK
single business unit that includes primarily the manufacture B T EERAENHEET MY - EIEE
and sale of linen yarns. Management reviews the consolidated o RAEEEREFERNEBRBEELR
results when making decisions about allocating resources ERgEMHEMHEE Al - XEETE2
and assessing the performance of the Group. Accordingly, no S 3 EBAHT o

segment analysis is presented.

Geographical information HEE R

(@  Revenue from external customers @ ZKEINEPEFUWA
An analysis of the Group’s geographical information TRENEAEBRBE_T—_F
on revenue attributed to the region on the basis of the TZA=T—RIEFERETFAEM
customer’s location for the year ended 31 December 2l K R FEAG WA B30 3R B

2012 is set out in the following table:

Revenue from
external customers

REMDEF KA
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Mainland China A [ K e 237,860 274,939
European Union (E 2] 246,520 225,979
Non-European Union FEEREE 234,532 210,042
Total BEE 718,912 710,960
(b)  Non-current assets b) FERBEE
Since the principal non-current assets, other than HRAEEERANEIZHERDEE
deferred tax assets, employed by the Group are located CGEFER IR E R M) Az 50 B R e -
in Mainland China, no geographical information for non- WA E 2SI IER B E ERHIEE K o

current assets is presented.

Information about a major customer FHXEEFHEHR

No revenue amounting to 10 percent or more of the Group’s RBEZE_ZT-——_F+_A=+—HILFE"
total revenue was derived from sales to a single customer for WHEME - FETNHEEREERKRA
the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: Nil). 10%HA E(ZE——F &) -
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. WA -HtthzmkEas
Revenue represents the sales value of linen yarns, net of sales WA HEBE  KHBRFEER R
tax and deduction of any sales discounts and returns. HURAE A 35 & 3740 SR A& ©
An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows: WA Bz RS m o
2012 2011
—E—-—F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETT

Revenue WA
Sale of linen yarns 465 Za i 40 718,912 710,960
Other income H i 22
Bank interest income RITF B YA 1,546 2,787
Government grants B 488 B 6,023 4,510
Exchange gain SMETS &8 50 -
Others Hith 633 131
8,252 7,428
Gain B
Fair value gains on derivative instruments TEERIEEMZITAETAR S Z
— transactions not qualifying as hedges NABESR 68 1,975
8,320 9,403
6. FINANCE COSTS 6. MFBAAE
2012 2011
—E-——fF —F——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREBT T
Interest on bank loans, HARAFAZHEEN
wholly repayable within five years RITEREF R 13,512 15,436
Less: interest capitalized BRI B (664) (716)

12,848 14,720
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 7.  BRFR1SBLBE <Al A
The Group’s profit before income tax expense is arrived at after AEEKRASHFA AR, (GA)
charging/(crediting): THRIRIERF
2012 2011
—E-C—F —ET——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREBT T
Cost of inventories sold HEFEKA 509,612 482,957
Depreciation e 49,644 47,704
Amortization of prepaid land lease = b 8 B FA N FRIE B 85

payments 859 867
Amortization of an intangible asset B A E 599 596
Research and development (“R&D”) st ke ([#FE )R

expenses 5,512 5,308
Minimum lease payments under REHER T REREREA:

operating leases:

Land and buildings TH REF 1,065 989
Auditors’ remuneration 1% ELE BN 1,500 1,500
Employee benefit expense (including BEBNFAX (BREEK

directors’ and chief executive’s FETHRAEHE) -

remuneration):

Wages, salaries and other benefits Fe TERHMEH 95,382 94,435

Pension scheme contributions RIREFT IR 6,042 5,576

Equity-settled share option expense NER AT BRERX 771 1,028

102,195 101,039
Foreign exchange differences, net HINEE 2= 58 R (50) 2,677
Fair value gains on derivative instruments NEEREH T ZITETARSZ

— transactions not qualifying as hedges ANAEBEESR (68) (1,975)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE BELREBR

plant and equipment 33 1,350
(Reversal of impairment provision against (FEREREBERD) MRF

inventories)/write-down of inventories AERRE

to net realisable value (178) (3,225)
Provision for doubtful debts KRR 26 979
Finance costs BF 7% A AR 12,848 14,720
Bank interest income RITH B A (1,546) (2,787)
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8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE’S 8.
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and Section 161 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

Fees e

Hip B -
e RUMEEDH G
BRI HER

Other emoluments:
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind
Pension scheme contributions

(@  Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

Mr. Yang Donghui BRIESRE
Mr. Lau Ying Kit TR E
Mr. Lo Kwong Shun Wilson BEFELE

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2011: Nil).
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EERFTETHRAEHE

FR-RIEEMRRIREFE CRBMEDD £
TIHERBENEERTETHRABME 40

T

2012 2011

—E—-_F ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBEF T
504 516
2,862 2,650
66 66
3,432 3,232

(@ FBIUIFRITES
FRNRBIUIEATEE 2B m
T

2012 2011
—E——F =ogl——d=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARET T
96 96
117 120
97 100
310 316

FALEENBUGFATEST ZHMOME
(ZF——F8]&)-




8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVFE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Executive directors, and non-executive directors and

chief executive

2012

Executive directors
Mr. Ren Weiming
Mr. Shen Yueming
Mr. Zhang Hongwen

Non-executive directors
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert
Mr. Tse Chau Shing Mark

2011

Executive directors
Mr. Ren Weiming
Mr. Shen Yueming
Mr. Zhang Hongwen

Non-executive directors
Mr. Ngan Kam Wai Albert
Mr. Tse Chau Shing Mark

—E—_—F

WITES
ERREL
TR ST A
RBXEE

FRTES
BeEkt
AEBELE

—E——F

WTES
ERAEL
TR L L
REXEE

FRITER
BeEkE
Gilfi:) v

Notes to Financial Statements

B 5 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

8. EERFETHBAEMES@w

b) HITESF FATESNETETH
ANE
Pension
scheme Total
Fees Salaries contributions remuneration
RIKEFE
we 2 H® MeBsE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®TR AR¥TR AR%¥Tx
- 1,350 22 1,372
- 810 22 832
- 702 22 724
- 2,862 66 2,928
97 - - 97
97 - - 97
194 - - 194
194 2,862 66 3,122
Pension
scheme Total
Fees Salaries  contributions  remuneration
RIREFE
e e HR [Tk
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFIT ARETT AREFTT ARETR
- 1,250 22 1,272
- 750 22 772
- 650 22 672
- 2,650 66 2,716
100 - - 100
100 - - 100
200 - - 200
200

2,650 66 2,916

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#RAER A A
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2011: three) directors and the chief executive, details of
whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining two (2011: two),
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

Salaries e
Pension scheme contributions RIRNEET B K

Equity-settled share option expense

The number of non-director and non-chief executive, highest
paid employees whose remuneration fell within the following
band is as follows:

UARE s A5 B R IR B S

IEREHFHES

FA AEREFHEEERE=2(=%
——F ZR)BFERIBETHRAR  EME
HIEEN EXHIES - FA B TIME (=T
——F MB)FARFEFTHREIETHA
BNESFMESNOMESFBLT

2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARBTT
646 604

62 22

25 34

733 660

MeRRATEENREHMIFESERIEE
BITHRABNEEAZWMT

Number of employees

EEZAR
2012 2011
—B--F %
Nil to RMB1,000,000 ARBEZTE ARE1,000,0007T 2 2

During the year ended 31 December 2012, no directors and
chief executive, or any of the non-director and non-chief
executive, highest paid employees waived or agreed to waive
any remuneration (2011: None). None of the directors and
chief executive, or any of the non-director and non-chief
executive, highest paid employees was paid by the Group
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2011: None).
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Notes to Financial Statements

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

During the year and in prior years, share options were
granted to a non-director and non-chief executive highest
paid employee in respect of his services to the Group, further
details of which are included in the disclosures in note 31 to
the financial statements. The fair value of such options, which
has been recognised in the income statement over the vesting
period, was determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Major components of the Group’s income tax expense for the
year are as follows:

BIHA—rh B KR
—FRAxH

Current — Mainland China
— Charge for the year
— Under provision in respect of prior years
Current — Hong Kong
Current — Italy
Deferred

BNHA — &8
BIHI— B KH
I

Total tax charge for the year

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands or the
British Virgin Islands.

(ii)  The provision for Mainland China income tax is based
on the respective corporate income tax rates applicable
to the subsidiaries located in Mainland China as
determined in accordance with the relevant income tax
rules and regulations of the People’s Republic of China
(“the PRC").

FABAS HAE

10.

—BEFERETR

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

LTEREEEFMEE w
RAFERBEFE  —RIIEESRIIEEE
TN B M= 5 BiE 8 A E 8 AR E B Frie
HE RIS M ERERE & — PFBEHN
EHRERMAITNEEER R - ZZEERER
ANBEERRBEHAEERSRER A0
BEDABRER L BHETE Mt AXRSFE
EPBHRRANSEET A L IEEE R IE
FETHRAENSSTMEENMHERES
e

FriSBip <
AEEREANFSHAXEZRAMT :

2012 2011
—E--F —ET——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARET T
30,486 39,587
824 460

28 =

535 1,058

711 835
32,584 41,940

() REFSEEMNEBEZESHAIN
R ARBHARARSEERNR
BRLZESEH -

(i) FPEREMERBGHESRELNHE
RENMBARMER RBRPEAR
HAE ([HE]) BREMBHRAFOE
BAAEEN S CEMSHEMIEDL -
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10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(continued)

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of
the PRC (“FEIT Law”), certain subsidiaries located
in Mainland China (“Mainland China subsidiaries”)
including Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang
Jinyuan”), Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Jinyuan”) and Jiangsu Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd. (“Jiangsu
Ziwei") are entitled to a tax holiday of a tax-free period
for two years from their first profit-making years of
operations and thereafter, they are subject to PRC
enterprise income tax at 50% of the applicable income
tax rate for the following three years (“Tax Holidays”).
The years of 2003, 2005 and 2008 are the first profit-
making years for Zhejiang Jinyuan, Jiangsu Jinyuan and
Jiangsu Ziwei, respectively.

During the Fifth Session of the Tenth National People’s
Congress, which was concluded on 16 March 2007, the
PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (the “Corporate Income
Tax Law”) was approved and became effective on 1
January 2008. According to the Corporate Income Tax
Law, the applicable tax rates of the Group’s subsidiaries
in Mainland China are unified at 25% with effect from 1
January 2008 except Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co., Ltd. (“Zhaosu
Jindi”) which is engaged in the preliminary processing of
agriculture products and is exempted from PRC income
tax. Pursuant to the transitional arrangement under the
Corporate Income Tax Law, Jiangsu Ziwei will continue
to enjoy a 50% reduction on the applicable income tax
rate under the Corporate Income Tax Law until the expiry
of the Tax Holidays previously granted under the FEIT
Law as at 31 December 2012, and thereafter will be
subject to the unified rate of 25%.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Italy, the Group is
subject to an income tax rate at 31.4%, which comprises
Italy Corporate Income Tax at 27.5% and Italy Regional
Income Tax at 3.9%.
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before

10. FIBHMAX w
BARNBMENBARMENREASERRER
RETE B R 5T & AR BR L A A1 /9 £5 18 7
% HERERHEEGTENRIER S MAE N

tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the
Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense

at the effective tax rate is as follows: T~
2012 2011
—E—-—F —T——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥BT T
Profit before tax B 56 AT g 7 126,764 145,079
Tax at an applicable tax rate of 25% 1RE R H25%8 R 5T E IR 31,691 36,270
Effect of different tax rates MEEEFE (5,279) (4,059)
Under provision in respect of prior years BEFERBTR 824 460
Share of profits and losses of an associate  fE{G —[EEi & X 7 A &N R EE 71 (4)
Income not subject to tax TERBAWA @31 =
Expenses not deductible for tax R HIB Y X 479 2,700
Tax credit arising from additional deduction A B K [ Ffi /&8 72 518 28 5 2 A&t
of R&D expenditures of a PRC subsidiary ~ IBREAERFHIBE R (403) (662)
Tax losses utilised from prior years PHRBEFENHIAEE - (716)
Tax effect of unused tax losses and ANERREBAHIEEE R
deductible temporary differences not AENERZENTETE
recognized - 2,221
Deferred tax liability on withholding tax EHHEFNRERERE 5,232 5,730
Total charge for the year FAX LB 32,584 41,940

11. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 1. BRFHEEABELSRR
PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the parent
for the year ended 31 December 2012 includes a loss of
RMB2,007,000 (2011: loss of RMB1,408,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 32(b)). The loss excluded dividends from subsidiaries

attributable to previous years’ profits.

2T —F+_A=1+—HIFE &
NElEB AEEEHRENBIEERARQ R
B 5wk 2% 5 BR MO 5 1B A R #62,007,0007T (=
T——F 5B ARE1,408,0000T) (KA1t
32(b)) ° ZIBEBEN EBIERE WEB AR E
HBAEFERFAORE -
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

12.

13.

DIVIDEND

Proposed final — HK7 cents
(2011: HK7 cents) per ordinary share

At a meeting of the Board held on 15 March 2013, the Board
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK7 cents per
ordinary share totalling approximately RMB35,537,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2012, which is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
623,107,000 (2011: 622,500,000) in issue during the year, as
adjusted to reflect the rights issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares
used in the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in
issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares.
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12. RE

BEAMR S-SR EER7E
—T——F:78)

2012 2011
—E-—fF —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARBTT
35,537 35,326
35,537 35,326

R-ZE—=F=ZATHBERTZEETES
L EFeEakTEE_T——_F+=
A=+ BLFERERESREBERE
il & H£ 49 AR #35,537,0007T  BEFE AR
RIRERREERFAFAS EH4 & FA{E

B

13. BRARAEERESHAARGER

EXRBERER

BREABFTIBEG QR LEREDS
BABRGEANSNRFADETTBR
hn4E F 15 #623,107,0000% (=T — — £
622,500,0000% ) 5T & - Wt & 31T 2 A%
{EHL FHEE -

BREERNRES AR T BRERTE
AREFERENE - St EE R Z BB
BN FRNERTERREA (BE
BREAXABNMEREMER)  ARRRE
MESEEEBRMARETEIRRSY
BEREERT BB N8
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

13. BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BAREERESRRAEARGER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY EXR#ERA @
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are BRERNREFSBANGTERNT :
based on:
2012 2011
—2—=F —F—%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETT
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders ~ FA{EFHE FAREAR K&
of the parent used in the basic and diluted ~— #EEZRF|H A 7L @A
earnings per share calculations A ARIEEN 94,180 103,139
Number of shares
R EE
2012 2011
—E-——F —T——F
000 ‘000
TR TR
Shares g
Weighted average number of ordinary shares FA{E&sH & G AR E R & FH
in issue during the year used in the basic FABETERBRINE TR
earnings per share calculation 623,107 622,500
Effect of dilution — weighted average number  #58 %22 — & 38 iR iN4E 19 85 -
of ordinary shares: 2,043 1,997
Share options BB
625,150 624,497
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011 and
at 1 January 2012:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

At 1 January 2012, net of
accumulated depreciation

Additions

Depreciation provided during the year

Transfers

Disposals

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2012, net of
accumulated depreciation
At31 December 2012:

Cost
Accumulated depreciation

Net carrying amount

14. W% BERRE

Plant and Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
buildings Machinery equipment vehicles improvements in progress Total
BEREEY BE  BLAERE RE REWELE HRIR &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRE AE®TR ARETR AR%ETn AR%Tx ARETR ARETR
—E-CF

tZA=1-R
RIE——F

+-A=+-BRk

—“F-——#—f-H:

AR 170,698 412,856 16,471 7,768 8,307 10,817 626,917

2iiTE (42,554) (190,715) (9,940) 3,311) @171) - (248,691)

FEFE 126,144 22214 6,531 4,457 6,136 10,817 378,226
RZZ-Z§-f-R"

MK 23 E 128,144 222,141 6,531 4,457 6,136 10,817 378,226
RE 2,450 5,229 2,723 171 1,947 25,450 37,970
FRTERE (9,011) (36,791) (1,585) (1,220) (1,037) - (49,644)
R - 19,161 344 - 677 (20,182) -
e - (12) (353) (159) 6) - (527)
EBREEL S - 2 2 - 4 - 8
RZIZ-ZF

t-A=t-8

MK 2HE 121,583 209,730 7,662 3,249 7,724 16,085 366,033
i3

+-A=+-B:

KA 173,149 435,877 19,179 7,632 10,935 16,085 662,857

2iiTE (51,566) (226,147) (11,517) (4,383) (3.211) - (296,824)

FEFE 121,583 209,730 7,662 3,249 7,724 16,085 366,033
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Plant and
buildings Machinery
FiE REEY e

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

14. YE - BERZE@®

Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BRERE nE BENEEE ERIR CE

RMB'OOO  RMB'O00  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTE ARETE ARETR ARBTL ARETR

31 December 2011 —IT——F
tZA=1-R
At 31 December 2010 and i
at 1 January 2011: +ZA=+-HRk
—E——4-f-R:
Cost A 156,381 379,816 13,826 6,099 7,448 22,714 586,284
Accumulated depreciation 2:1TE (34,219) (156,721) 8,528) (2,003) (1,380) = (202,851)
Net carrying amount REFE 122,162 223,095 5,298 4,09 6,068 2,714 383,433
At 1 January 2011, net of RZZ——5-f-R"
accumulated depreciation Bl S 122,162 223,095 5,298 4,09 6,068 22,714 383,433
Additions RE 6,003 6,882 1,114 1,169 860 28,303 44331
Depreciation provided during the year R E& (8,415) (35,515) (1,674) (1,308) (792) = (47,704)
Transfers af 8,526 29,338 1,836 500 = (40,200) =
Disposals e (132) (1,655) (37) - - - (1,824)
Exchange realignment ERHBE = “) 6) = = - (10
At 31 December 2011, net of RZE——%
accumulated depreciation TZRA=+-H"
MK 2HE 128,144 222,141 6,531 4,457 6,136 10,817 378,226
At31 December 2011: WZZE——F
+-fA=1+-8:
Cost A 170,698 412,856 16,471 7,768 8,307 10,817 626,917
Accumulated depreciation 2iiTE (42,554) (190,715) (9,940) (3,311) 2,171) = (248,691)
Net carrying amount EHFE 128,144 222,141 6,531 4,457 6,136 10,817 378,226

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB43,770,000 (2011: RMB48,470,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in note 29(i).

WM F29()FrE - R ——F+_=H8
=+t A AEEEEFEHNARE
43,770,000 (=& ——F . AR%
48,470,0007C) M % - BB R EED T
o AEANEEERIBITERNER
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

15. T #EEFESFIE

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E——F T4
+=ZB=+—H +=—A=+—H”
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARET T
Cost: B
At beginning and end of year FNRER 40,408 40,408
Addtions 1% 23,398 -
At end of year FR 63,806 40,408
Accumulated amortization: B3tk
At beginning of year F7) (5,509) (4,642)
Charge for the year FAEH (859) (867)
At end of year FR (6,368) (5,509)
Carrying amount at end of year FARREE 57,438 34,899
Current portion included in prepayments, &t ATEfI 3R & &
deposits and other receivables H A e SRR R B B (859) (867)
Non-current portion FEMENEL 56,579 34,032

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s prepaid land lease
payments with a net carrying amount of approximately
RMB28,031,000 (2011: RMB28,738,000) were pledged to
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in note 29(i).

Lease prepayments represent costs paid to the PRC land bureau
in obtaining land use rights in respect of land located in
Mainland China with a lease period of 50 years when granted.
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Mt E29(FrE R ——F+ = A
=+—H AEEEEFEHNARE
28,031,000 (ZFE——F . AR®
28,738,0007T) K L EFE(T HIBE T8
B EAREEERIRITERNER-
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16.

17.

INTANGIBLE ASSET

At 1 January 2012, net of accumulated amortization

Additions
Amortization provided during the year

At 31 December 2012, net of accumulated amortization

At 31 December 2012:
Cost
Accumulated amortization

Net carrying amount

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company

Unlisted shares, at cost
Capital contribution in respect of
employee share-based compensation

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

16. BLEE

R-ZT——F—HF—8"
bk 25+

g

F R R

RZE—=—F+=ZA=+—8"
Bk Rt
R-ZE——F+_A=+—0:
R AR
B £
IRmEFE

17. RNBRARNERE

Certified
emission rights
R P RE
RMB’000
AREFT

11,323
94
(599)

10,818
12,013

(1,195)

10,818

¥ /N
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—Z2—=F - %
+=BA=+—8 +=—A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT T ARBEF T
JE LM - A A 371,249 370,221
BREEE RN REERD
HE 1,285 1,028
372,534 371,249
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17. RBARWERE @)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December R-ZE——_F+_A=+—HHNEERBR
2012 are as follows: AIFFIBT
Nominal value of
Place and date issued ordinary/
of incorporation/ registered Percentage of equity
Name of company establishment share capital  attributable to the Company  Principal activities
BRITLER
DRAEH SRR BB R A AR AEE FAREAREEIL TEER
Direct Indirect
=k Gk
Overseas Kingdom Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") HK$0.01/HK$500 100% - Investment holding
26 July 2006
Overseas Kingdom Limited RERLES ([BVI]) 0.01/87T,/50078 7T 100% - REER
“ETRELAZTRA
Kingdom Group Holdings Limited ~ Hong Kong, China HK$1,250,000 - 100%  Investment holding and
(“Hong Kong Kingdom”) 10 September 2004 trading
eEEEERARARF TEEA 1,250,000/ 7T - 100% KEAZREES
(1E%4E]) —EENEAATE
Asia Harvest Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, China HK$1/HK$10,000 - 100%  Trading
10 November 2005
RELEBRAF hEEE 177T,/10,000% 7T - 100% Z%
“ETRE+—A+A
Zhejiang Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. PRC 18 March 2003 US$36,320,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns
IS TERARAR i 36,320,000 T = 100% EERHEETMY
“ZZ=F=A+/\H
Jiangsu Jinyuan Flax Co., Ltd. PRC 17 October 2003 US$18,500,000 = 100%  Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns
IHETEMARAA i 18,500,000% 70 - 100% EERHEZMY
—TE=FATLR
Jiangsu Ziwei Flax Co., Ltd. PRC 26 October 2006 US$10,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns
IHREREMARAA i 10,000,000% 70 - 100% A£ERBEZMY
“EERFFA-TRA
Zhejiang Jinda Flax Co., Ltd. PRC 28 May 2012 RMB50,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns
ALEEEMARAA G AR #50,000,00070 - 100% EERHEZMY
—T-—FRA=+NH
Zhejiang Jinlainuo Fiber Co., Ltd. PRC 28 February 2012 RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
linen fiber
MTERAGEBRAA i AK#10,000,0007C - 100% HERKBEZ MM
ZE-ZFZA=FNA
Zhaosu Jindi Flax Co., Ltd. PRC 23 May 2007 RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
linen yarns
BESIMTMARAA H AR H30,000,00070 - 100% EERBEDMY
“ERLFEIA-T=A
Kingdom Europe S.R.L. Italy 7 September 2007 EUR502,646 - 100%  Trading
Kingdom Europe SR.L. BAA 502,646E( 7T = 100% 2%
“ZTENALH
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INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets

FEIEEEFE

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

18.

The Group holds an 18% equity interest in an associate,
namely Huaning Flax Electronic Business (Zhejiang) Co., Ltd.,
which was established on 28 December 2009 in the PRC with
registered capital of RMB30,000,000. The principal business
of the associate is the sale of linen yarn products and the

provision of transaction services. Although the Group holds
less than 20% of the voting power of the associate, the Group
exercises significant influence as a member of its board of

directors.

Particulars of the principal associate are as follows:

Particulars of

Name issued shares held

e RT

g B 1D 5515

Zhejiang Huaning Flax Electronic RMB30,000,000
Business Co., Ltd. (“Huaning Flax”)

W IERGME FEEAR AR AR

(=R R ) 30,000,0007T

Place of
establishment

FR 34t 3B

PRC

R E

The financial statements of this company for the year ended
31 December 2012 were not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong
Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young global

network.

R—EBELTNRE

31 December 31 December

2012 2011
—E--F —F——F
t=A=+—-RA ftZA=1—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT
5,784 6,069

AEBIF A E QR BT LE R i E T s
ERAAIN8%MBRE ER ST NF+=
A=+ NBRFEK  sEMEREARE
30,000,0007T ° 7z B & A M £ B X A H
EnMYERRRER PR BEANEE
BEZEE QRN EETE20% AL
BEEaHEEeNERTFEATE -

ZEZBERBRFBOT

Percentage of

ownership
interest
attributable to
the Group  Principal activities
AEBEES
BERERD
BAE EEEB
18%  Sale of linen yarn products
and provision of
transaction services
18%  HEZMYPEMR
REZ 5 R

ZAREHE_T——Ft+-_A=+—HItF
R SRR IEM B AL KT BT
WL KEERBIE MK B A R)T/Z -
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

18. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 18. R—EHEATNRE @
The following table illustrates the summarised financial TREFAEEBEARNMBERNRE
information of the Group’s associate extracted from its financial Thfask e A B HREK
statements:
2012 2011
—2—=F —F—%
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Assets BE 31,735 33,438
Liabilities afE 394 275
Revenue WA 357 12,880
Profit i ) (1,584) 92
19. DEFERRED TAX 19. JEFERIR
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities of the AEBERLEHRBEERBBENFANZSHN
Group during the year are as follows: T -
Deferred tax assets: REBIREE:
Loss Depreciation
available in excess
for offsetting Allowance Provision  Elimination of related
against future for doubtful against  of unrealised  depreciation
taxable profit Accruals debts inventories profits allowance Total
TREHE FERL
RRERH ig Py 3] BRAE
BRNER RRER RERAHE FERRE wk  BENEE &t

RMBOOO  RMBIOOO  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMBO00  RMB'000
ARBTTE AREFTT AR®TR ARETT ARETE ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2011 RZE——%-A-H 438 1,886 28 368 1,026 375 4121

Deferred tax credited/(charged) ~ ERFTABZEE/
to the income statement during  (BBRFIR) &

the year BIEHE (438) 1,607 470 649 498 355 3,141
At 31 December 2011 and R=_E——F
1 January 2012 +-A=1-RHEk
“$--£-f-H - 3,493 498 1,017 1,524 730 7,262

Deferred tax credited/(charged) R ABEE/
to the income statement during ~ (BB&EFIR)

the year HELHE - 405 (153) 186 450 189 1,077
At 31 December 2012 R=F-—=F
+=A=1-H - 3,898 345 1,203 1974 919 8,339
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

19. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 19. EZEBIE @)

Deferred tax liabilities: EEBHEEE:
Withholding
tax on
undistributed
profits of Fair value  Depreciation
the gains on allowance
Mainland derivative in excess
China financial of related
subsidiaries  instruments  depreciation Total
B A BE
MELE TEEH mERE
RO K IR BHEH
i A DREE wEn
BB B& K] &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETR
At 1 January 2011 R-_T——%F—HF—H 3,774 928 = 4,702
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRNEEREMR
to the income statement during (GtAB=mK)
the year BRI IR 4,103 (670) 543 3,976
At 31 December 2011 and R=—E——%F
1 January 2012 +ZA=+—HBk
—2——%—-H—H 7,877 258 543 8,678
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRNERBZRNE
to the income statement during (FFABHK)
the year R SR T8 1,898 (241) 131 1,788
At 31 December 2012 R-ZZE—=F
+=-A=+—~

9,775 17 674 10,466

RIBE TSR P B RREIRE R
SNEIRECETIR TINEREENREA
BUN0%MBEINH - ZREE ST\ F—
A—BRAER WEAR_ZZT+F+=A
=t —HRBREENEF-

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China.
The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to
earnings generated after 31 December 2007.
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

19. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.

The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the

Group for financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax of the Group as at 31 December 2012 and 2011

relates to the following:

Deferred tax assets arising from:

— Allowance for doubtful debts

— Provision against inventories

— Elimination of unrealized profits

— Accruals

— Depreciation in excess of related
depreciation allowance

2012 Annual Report — 8 — —F F 3§

THSHEELN
EERIBEE

—REREE

—FERE

— I SH R IR g A

—TAIREM

—EBLARITE
BENDSER

19. EZEBIE @)

RIE2IZA FTELERAEERARED
RN R AL H - BIEM 2]

AEBMNRLEHR AL S

DT -

AEBR_ZE——FR_ZFT——F+_A
=+ HRELEHELE TS SEEE !

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
—E—-C—F —T—F
+=A=+—8 +=—HA=+—8©
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREF T
345 498

1,203 1,017

1,974 1,524

3,898 3,493

919 730

8,339 7,262




19. DEFERRED TAX (continued)
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

19. EZEBIE @)

31 December

31 December

2012 2011
—E-—C—F —T——F
+=ZB=+—H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Deferred tax liabilities arising from: THSEEANRERIASE:
— Withholding tax on undistributed profits — A B A fff &8 A &)
of Mainland China subsidiaries RO om F H Fa 0 71 (9,775) (7,877)
— Depreciation allowance in excess of —EREBBLEH
related depreciation TENSHE (674) (543)
— Fair value gains on derivative financial —#$T4£ &8 T AR/
instruments NAEBESRE 17) (258)
(10,466) (8,678)
Deferred tax, net RIEF IR TR (2,127) (1,416)
Reflected in the consolidated statement of & B 755 ik 5 2= A S BR -
financial position:
— Deferred tax assets —REBIIREE 8,322 7,004
— Deferred tax liabilities —REHIEEE (10,449) (8,420)

As at 31 December 2012, other than the amount recognized
in the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax has not
been recognized for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such unremitted earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognized totalled approximately RMB163,889,000 at 31
December 2012 (2011: RMB94,713,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

RZE——F+_A=+—H BREHIK
HERRNEHERNSREIN WERAEBE LT
B K BE A 7 RO B BB A R ZB AR TN B M R P
HAFETENNENREREERE TS
Y= S EUNCIN AR =2 NG
DIKZERELREF -RZT—=F+=A
=+—H - SGRFPERENBARNRES
Ml ERERECH A ENERE
HEES KN A ARE163,889,0007T (==
——%&F: AR#94,713,0007T) °

AR B A EL RO AN i B 3 SR B A5 P S B A%
BIER -
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

20. INVENTORIES 20. &

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

—E——F T4

+=ZA=+—8 +=—A=+—-H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%ETR ARBTT

Raw materials JRH 120,760 137,192
Work in progress FE& 14,413 20,811
Finished goods BN 105,397 77,992
240,570 235,995

As at 31 December 2012, inventories with a carrying amount WM 29 FTE - R ——F+ A
of RMB52,302,000 (2011: RMB40,000,000) were pledged to =+—B REEASAKR52,302,0007T
secure bank loans granted to the Group as set out in note 29(i). —Z——% : AK%40,000,0007T)HFE
ETE# (EARTASEMNRITERE

R
21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 21. BHESRAREKREE

31 December 31 December

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——F

+=ZA=+—8H +=—A=+—8

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBTT

Trade receivables U E 5 BRI 145,896 117,827
Notes receivables e E I 73,561 33,125
Impairment B (1,380) (1,614)
218,077 149,338
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TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)
Customers are normally granted credit terms ranging from
30 days to 150 days depending on the creditworthiness of
the individual customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

The Group's notes receivables were all aged within six months
and were neither past due nor impaired.

An aged analysis of the Group’s trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provisions, is as follows:

Within 1 month — @AW

1 to 2 months — B A = 1E A
2 to 3 months A E A ==& A
Over 3 months =f@AE

21.

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

FREZRAKEVEE @
BF—RER TEEHH0KREISOK  ETF
BEREFHEEME - ANEBE— B BIRET
AU E U FRIE - W R A S B S ER LA (=
BERBRERE - sAEEETHEN B
ko [EINE SR TG B »

AEBNEREEREDRNEAR L&
BRI R E -

RBMEMR AEENREEZRRIRER
BB R R R AT T

31 December 31 December

2012 2011
—E—_F —E——F
+=ZA=+—8H +=—RA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETIT
81,511 92,115

30,565 10,985

16,871 5,640

15,569 7,473
144,516 116,213
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued) 21.

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

At 1 January n—HA—H
Impairment losses recognized HERREER
Amount written off as uncollectible AN BT Bl R IR 8 3H R
Impairment losses reversed BEEEED

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables is a provision for individually impaired trade
receivables of RMB1,380,000 (2011: RMB1,614,000) with a
carrying amount before provision of RMB2,951,000 (2011:
RMB1,614,000).

The impaired trade receivables relate to customers that were
in financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

Neither past due nor impaired REH LA RE

Less than 1 month past due e —EA

1 to 3 months past due Eaf—EAE=EH
Over 3 months past due EEHA=EA L

2012 Annual Report — 8 — —F F 3§

EWESRAREREE @
JEWE ZFERFURBEREZE T

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—EF-=F —F——F
+=g=+-8 +=A=+-H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARET T
1,614 1,297

31 1,206

(260) (662)

(5) (227)

1,380 1,614

Lt E Z RSO E R B @R R ER
B E SR BB AR %1,380,0000T (=&
——4F: AR#1,614,00070)  BEERIERE
EAARE2,951,000 (ZE——F: AR
#1,614,0007T) °

ERERKE SRR AR AN TR TP
B FREHE R B BB ) e U R -

I FE 18 5l 2 5= BB AR AR (B HY B W & 5 RR R A0
FREC DATAA T -

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E--F —ET—%
t=RA=+—-B +ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETxR ARET T
133,884 105,181
5,406 4,046

2,272 6,199
2,954 787
144,516 116,213
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Notes to Financial Statements

TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES (continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

The carrying amount of the trade and notes receivables
approximates to their fair value due to their short term maturity.

Notes receivables that are not derecognized in their
entirety

At 31 December 2012, the Group endorsed certain notes
receivables accepted by banks in the PRC (the “Endorsed
Notes”) with a carrying amount of RMB10,996,000 to certain
of its suppliers in order to settle the trade payables due to such
suppliers (the “Endorsement”). In the opinion of the directors,
the Group has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which
include default risks relating to such Endorsed Notes, and
accordingly, it continued to recognize the full carrying amounts
of the Endorsed Notes and the associated trade payables
settled. Subsequent to the endorsement, the Group does not
retain any rights on the use of the Endorsed Notes, including
sale, transfer or pledge of the Endorsed Notes to any other third
parties. The aggregate carrying amount of the trade payables
settled by the Endorsed Notes during the year to which the
suppliers have recourse is RMB10,996,000 as at 31 December
2012.

21.

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

FREZRAKEVEE @

BEAR B At R E R RN E ZER LS B
ZNEZTCEFEH ZEEFAERIFE
HIRESE ©

ERMERRENEYEE S RHNES EE T
BEFPEM RERXPRAKER RIFHBE
i RBAERER ARREERARESR
HRESERERERE AREEERER
ERCAZFERMMIBPR R AR B -

HREHBE WRKE SRR NEREE
MEREEEEAREBERS-

WHEEHRILBEINERRE

R-E——F+_A=+—H AEERH
ATHEREEE THTRARITENNE
WER ([EEEEER])  FASEAARE
10,996,0007T * LA B B sz S B rS A FE
HESER([BEE]) -BEZRE AEB
RBEARBKEER  BIEFEZSELEE
ZEMNENRR  WASBEEEmALEE
ZERBBEEERMNESERNEIER
- REER AEBEUERBEMER
KEEZEREN SRRERNEME=S
HE EEERCEERE - FR - LR
FAABRENCEEZEREENENES
EXR—_E——F+-_A=+—HBHEEEZ
2 A AR ¥10,996,0007T °
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22, AR -HERHMEKRKIE
RECEIVABLES
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
t=ZA=+—8H +=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBT T
Prepayments AN 25,577 14,634
Prepaid land lease payment due R—FREEN LiHEE
within one year AT RIA 859 867
Deposits and other receivables e & H At FE W R IA 16,957 6,471
43,393 21,972
The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing FPERREER THEREBRTEER
and have no fixed terms of repayment. Hj o
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. The EtEERE KRB E TR EIRE o 5t A Ll 8k
financial assets included in the above balances related to B & RRE 2 B BRNE S R A B A R MR IR
receivables for which there was no recent history of default. a5
The carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other HREEARE  IAMR - e RHE MR
receivables approximates to their fair value due to their short RENFEEREAABERS-

term maturity.
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23.

24.

25.

Notes to Financial Statements

AMOUNT DUE TO A RELATED COMPANY

Huaning Flax HERE op il

AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES

The balances with subsidiaries as at each year end are non-
trade in nature, unsecured, repayable on demand and interest-
free, and their carrying amount approximates to their fair value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Assets: BE:
Foreign exchange forward contracts SMEZE B A X — B
— current

The Group uses forward currency contracts to manage some of
its transaction exposures. These currency forward contracts are
not designated as cash flow, fair value or net investment hedges
and are entered into for periods consistent with currency
transaction exposures, generally from one to twelve months.
These contracts will mature within 2013.

The derivatives are measured at fair value as at 31 December
2012.

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

23. E—HEBEEARRIE

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E-CF —T——F
+=A=t+-B +=A=t+-~
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ETR ARET T

55 -

24. YW (M) MEB 2 RARIE
REFFE BHBARNGHEIFE S
B RSN REREERES AHEE
EREDABEEE -

25. fTE€RmITE

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E-=F —E——%F
+=—HA=+—H +=A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTIT

638 1,033

AEEFERERINESOERELNRHA
RoRFRAIESHNREEARERE
RABEICFREH B MaILWHMEES
B¥xZRR—H(—KRE—=T_@A)-
ZEAHER _ZE—=FRIH-

W=F——F+-A=+—B HATAR
AREEE-
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

26. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 26. B RBREESEYURBERER

DEPOSITS
Group Company
rEE NG|
2012 2011 2012 2011
—%--% % ZB--f T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR®BTR ARETT
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTER 199,543 201,102 2,064 1,870
Time deposits EHIE R - - - -
199,543 201,102 2,064 1,870
Less: Pledged deposits for bank loans & : BFLIRITE R
BHROER (35,900) (37,600) - =
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEE&EEY 163,643 163,502 2,064 1,870
At 31 December 2012, the Group’s pledged deposits with a WA M FE29 (i) AT # - ——Ft=
net carrying amount of approximately RMB35,900,000 (2011: A=+—H &% . EE ﬁ FEAOAR
RMB37,600,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to #35,900,000c (T ——F: AR
the Group as set out in note 29(i). 37,600,0007T ) B EHIFFRE FHEF  (FR
RTAKENRITERAER -
27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. FEﬁ'g 2 R
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at 31 December \\ —E-—F+ZA=t+—H RAXIH
2012, based on the payment due date, is as follows: DENENESRIEREINAOT :
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
S —e——%
+=-A=+—8 TZHA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREFT
Due within 1 month or on demand — BB RE|Esk R EREHEE 30,001 43,669
Due after T month but within 3 months ~ —1{& 3 LA1& 18 =1{& A A 2| &5 10,597 6,484
Due after 3 months but within 6 months = 1& 5 LAT218 /<@ A A 2| &8 2,588 8,196
43,186 58,349
The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. FPRESRAEERB R R -RERED
The carrying amount of trade payables at the end of each RK-BREEERE WENEZRFOEE
reporting period approximates to their fair value due to their ERAQNABERS-

short term maturity.

124 2012 Annual Report — & — —F 43




Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 28. HttENRERFAREH

Group

EE
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E-C—F —E——%F
t=ZA=+—8 +ZA=+—H”
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARET T
Advances from customers HE#R 5,027 5,267
Accruals TEIRER 2,274 1,923
Other payables H At 1t 5/ 36,205 23,757
43,506 30,947

Company

NN
31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E-—F —ET——%F
t=ZA=+—8H TZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AREBT T
Other payables H At 5t R - 230
The above balances are unsecured and non-interest-bearing. FRERREERRTAE -RNERESR
The carrying amount of other payables and accruals at the end R HREH B AR - MOE M A FRIE TR R

of each reporting period approximates to their fair value due to ERNEmEEEAREERE-

their short term maturity.
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

Current

Secured bank loans
Unsecured bank loans

Total

Note:

(i) As at 31 December 2012, the interest-bearing bank loans were
secured by certain property, plant and equipment, prepaid
land lease payments, inventories and pledged deposits of
the Group with carrying amounts of RMB43,770,000 (2011:
RMB48,470,000), RMB28,031,000 (2011: RMB28,738,000),
RMB52,302,000 (2011: 40,000,000) and RMB35,900,000

BNEA

BHEMRITER
ERMRITER

(2011: RMB37,600,000), respectively.

(i) The bank loans bear interest at rates ranging from 3.82% to

6.72% per annum (2011: 5.65% to 6.56% per annum).

The carrying amount of the interest-bearing bank loans of the
Group approximates to their fair value due to their short term

maturity.
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29. ;itEEBITER

Note
HraF

(i)

e -

31 December 31 December

2012 2011
—E——F %
+=-A=+—8 +=ZA=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETTT
199,100 159,100

16,584 5,000

215,684 164,100

R-—TE——F#+-_A=+—H &
RITEFRAREBRREEEI IRBAR
#43,770,000 (Z T ——F: AR¥
48,470,0007T) + AR #28,031,0007T (=
T ——F: AR%28,738,0007T) - AR
#52,302,000c (T ——F: AR¥
40,000,0007T) & A R #35,900,0007T ( =
T——4: AR¥37,600,0007T) E T
¥ BEREE tHASEMNZE FE
R B EIRERIEER -

RITE IR ER K3 82%E6.72% (=T
——% :5.65%%6.56% )T B °

} o MAKER BRITERNE

A E 8 B
(S A A B EARE -




30.

ISSUED CAPITAL

Group and Company

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each

Issued and fully paid:

At 1 January and 31 December

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

30. BEITERAK

R=RA—-HRt-A=+-AH

KEBERAXRQTE
The Group and the Company
AEEREAF
2012 2011
—E-C& —T——F
Number Amount Number Amount
of shares HK$/000 of shares HK$'000
RAEE 8 BHEE! ik
TERT THx
EE:
BREEOIETHEER  3,000,000,000 30,000 3,000,000,000 30,000
BERITREBE:
2012 2011
—E-Cf —E——F
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
RAEE 8 RiHEE &8
HK$000 RMB’000 HK$'000 RMB'000
equivalent equivalent
TET AR®TR TELT ARETR
(%) (%8)
626,140,000 6,261 6,301 622,500,000 6,225 6,272

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends

as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per

share at shareholders” meetings of the Company. All ordinary

shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual

assets.

EREFAEABREDRIEEIRNRE A
BRARBBRRAE LRER RN HIR

R A ERRNAR

CE=S A

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#RAERA A

ARBEETHER
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, and other employees of the Group in the Company’s
subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective on 15 November
2006 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain
in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Scheme is an amount
equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant in the
Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval in advance by the
independent non-executive directors.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$0.01 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors, and commences after a vesting period of one to three
years and ends on a date which is not later than five years from
the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.
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31.

BB IR T &

ARrlRE —BREEEE ([518l)) - R
UAKEEBRINEHERMNAERSEA
REMB R EEMR -FAENAERZEA
BRARAER (BERBUIFATESR) R
RERARAMBARNASEEMES -
AEE—ETRF+-A+THEBRER K
FWEUHRERT BRI A% AR +FH
R o

R &R EAR DO RITRBRENR
=#A - BERITEREEZR AR BRER
R 2 TR EN10% - RIBFAEINET RS
ERZEAREOBRET A TEHTORD
BRHEE - MEE+ =@ A BHEAT A B8
ARRARREAREDS ZEBTRONI% K
B R BREASRRNBERAS it
fE

BYARBIES TBTRABRETERR
IR FEIB R AN AL B IETT
EEEtHE-

REBRENELOAINEE B HEF21AR
HARAXNBERES H0.0TETER-
RHMBRENITERRESRE AN —
E-FRBHRAL AR TERREZBR
B HRERFAER B FEEER AR
I (ARFERE) -
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BREE W
The exercise price of share options is determinable by the BRETEERESETE HETEER TS
directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock BENREE  )VNREBREBHAERRQF
Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of PRAD TS X PEV T B R (B IR 2 A HA
offer of the share options; and (ii) the average Stock Exchange Al A AR 5 B A2 B AR 9 OBk 32 P ey F 1 Uk
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days mE: Ri&kHmEE -
immediately preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal
value of the share.
Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends B AR AT MR T4 B AR IR B AR R K
or to vote at shareholders’ meetings. g EFREAER -
The following share options were outstanding under the FAFEBETRARITEAOBRENT
Scheme during the year:
2012 2011
—2--F —FF
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options ~ exercise price of options
mE¥H 13
i3 BREHE TRE BRESA
HKS$ per share 000 HKS per share '000
BRER T4 gRET T
At 1 January n—H—H 0.400 9,100 0.400 9,100
Exercised during the year FATE 0.400 (3,640) - -
At 31 December RTZA=+—H 0.400 5,460 0.400 9,100

FREITEREIENTTEE A BRI F 5%
BAER0.7508 T (—ZE——F : WHEER
WEEITRE) o

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for
share options exercised during the year was HK$0.750 per
share (2011: No share options were exercised).
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2012

Number of options

ERERA
‘000
T

5,460

5,460

2011
Number of options
BRERE
‘000
T

3,640

5,460

9,100

Exercise price
TEE

HK$ per share
BRET

0.400

Exercise price
TEE

HK$ per share
BRABT

0.400

0.400

No share options were granted during the year (2011: Nil).

The Group recognized a share option expense of HK$948,000,
equivalent to RMB771,000 (2011: RMB1,028,000) during the

year ended 31 December 2012.
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BIREST & (w0
R EHRERITEBRENITEE RITE
HAAN :

Exercise period

1TEEH

9 July 2013 to 8 July 2015
—E—=Ft+tAhHEZ—RHF+ANH

—F——F

Exercise period

1TEER

9 July 2012 to 8 July 2015
—E——HtANAEZZE-AFtANAH

9 July 2013 to 8 July 2015
—E-CE+ANRE-F-RFLANA

FATERTRABRE(ZZE——F:
E) o BE_T——F+_A=+—HLF
[ AEBEE BRERER 948,000/ 7T -
BERAREK771,000 (ZE——F: AR
#1,028,0007T) °




31.

Notes to Financial Statements

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted was
estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial tree model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

Share options
granted on
17 August 2010

Dividend yield (%) 2.1
Spot stock price (HK$ per share) 0.57
Historical volatility (%) 69.32
Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.01
Exercise multiple 2.5
Weighted average share price

(HK$ per share) 0.400

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

The 3,640,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 3,640,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of HK$36,400, equivalent to
RMB29,000, and share premium of HK$2,596,000, equivalent
to RMB2,180,000 (before issue expenses), as further detailed in
notes 30 and 32 to the financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 5,460,000
share options outstanding under the Scheme. The exercise
in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue
of 5,460,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of HK$54,600, equivalent to
RMB44,000, and share premium of HK$2,129,400, equivalent
to RMB1,732,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the
Company had 5,460,000 share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 0.87% of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

31.
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As at 31 December 2012 R _-E——#F+_-H=+—H

BRAESE
ERHNNEREEEREN A AEBEDR
B BENA BB RER G EFE
E R BB IAE RS TR AR » N3RPT
BRI R ATEE :

R-E—ZF

NB++tH

R H SR RE

AR EE (%) 2.1

HERE (BRET) 0.57

JEE 528 18 (%) 69.32

18 3 f ) 22 (%) 1.01

TERE 2.5
INHEF 3 Re (&

(FBBT) 0.400

Rt E QA BERLES LD RO BRERN
H AR -

3,640,000 BE IR ER F N EIT - FEE
73,640,0000% 28 72 &) 38 % - 30 2 A AR
736,400 7T (1 E K A R #29,0007T)
X B& 15 %5 182,596,000 7T (IHE R AR
2,180,0007T) (KREFEITHZ) - #E— 7
BER B BRERMFE30K%32 ©

REREHAR - KA B H#£A5,460,00017 [# AR AR
BETEIITE R ERE - IRB AR REENE
ARLEWE - RITEBIEE R BITE B8 B E
75,460,000% 78 A &) BB /N I 8 A% - W E A
REHMNIR 54,6007 7T (FBE R A R #44,000
7T ) MR 17 345 182,129,40078 7T (HERAR
#1,732,00070) (REFETHY) ©

RZEMERRENERE KARIHE
5,460,00017 (A ARARIEFTEI7T 6 A RERRAE - 5
AKRAFBIRZHE B BT £0.87% °
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

32. RESERVES

(@

Group

The changes in the reserves of the Group during the year
have been disclosed in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the Group.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve represents the difference between the
then shareholders’ total capital contributions to Hong
Kong Kingdom over the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange thereof as at the
date of a reorganization (the “Reorganization”) of the
Group to rationalize the group structure in preparation
for the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange. Details of the Reorganization are set out in the
prospectus of the Company dated 30 November 2006.

PRC statutory reserve

General reserve fund

The subsidiaries in Mainland China are required to
transfer at least 10% of their profit after taxation, as
determined under the PRC accounting regulations, to the
general reserve fund until the reserve balance reaches
50% of their respective registered capital. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before the distribution of
dividends to shareholders.

The general reserve fund can be used to make good
losses and convert into share capital by the issue of new
shares to shareholders in proportion to their existing
equity holdings.
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32. f#1E
(@

#EH
FALKERBEBHERAEES O
BB RNRE -

BHtRERE
EHFERESBRARRIRMONER
Frbm AEEETEHE([EHE]) A
RESERBEER BESEERD
BRI KA RN B R BT
D EEMNZRE SAFEHRA
RAABEMA_TERF+—A=1H
MARKREREA-

hEDEAE

—REFHEE
REIREER B R R ZBRBE T E
SRR EEEMRBEE N &Z10%
E-RiERES BEERBEHREIR
& B & AM50%4 L o B2 3 A
BARD KRR TRRATETT

— AR (A 2 T PR 1 A BB 1R S A R B
RABFRLOIAMEZITHRD T
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32. RESERVES (continued)

(@

Group (continued)

Enterprise expansion fund

The transfers from retained profits to the enterprise
expansion fund were made in accordance with the
relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles of
association of the Company’s subsidiaries and were
approved by the respective boards of directors.

The enterprise expansion fund can be used to convert
into share capital, to acquire fixed assets and to increase
current assets.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries.

Share option reserve

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the
share options issued under the Scheme are included in
note 31 to the financial statements.

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
funds in share premium account are distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to
pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

32. %% @

(@

AEB (®)

TtEZERES

IRBR i F AR B AP B AR B AR Bl UK AR A
PN N/NETE=S )= NG lEo PR =g
REZCERRES UKHBES
SRR -

CEEZRESTARBRABA WK
BETEENRENRBEE-

bE 3 (i
PE 3t B2 SR AT B SINH I 8 R 7
BRAELENMBELZ5E-

B R
ARRABE IR 8 R B R THY
BRER F IS N M RR M L3 -

Bcdn it (B

RV EERNERXAEFERADE
EEREMASBHSRRDA MR
EEO KRS BHIE  KRAREAR
BEEBEETBEINRPES AKX
s ERPONESH DK TARAR
B o
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32. RESERVES (continued)

Company

At 1 January 2011

Profit for the year

Equity-settled share option
arrangements

Proposed final 2011 dividend

At 31 December 2011 and
1 January 2012

Issue of share capital

Profit for the year

Equity-settled share option
arrangements

Proposed final 2012 dividend

At 31 December 2012

Contributed surplus

RZE—Z-F+=-HA=+—H

R=F——%—A—H
FREF
MERS S E BRI 5

BE_T—FRHBE

RZF——F
TZA=+-8k
—FT-Z%-R-A

BIRA
FRE A
NG AR5

BE T EREKRE

R-ZE——4%
+=fA=+—8

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

As at 31 December 2012

32. %% @

(b) FQF
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share  Contributed  Share option retained
premium surplus reserve profits Total
(REHE®R)/

R A5 E BABH BRERHE REEF A5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETT ARETRT ARETE ARET:
268,001 370,213 514 (34,535) 604,193
- - - 35,791 35,791

- - 1,028 - 1,028
= = = (35,326) (35,326)
268,001 370,213 1,542 (34,070) 605,686
2,180 = (1,028) = 1,152

- - - 37,125 37,125

- - 771 - 771

= = = (35,537) (35,537)
270,181 370,213 1,285 (32,482) 609,197

AR R

Contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair value
of the shares of Kingdom Group Holdings Limited at the
date of the Reorganization over the nominal value of the

shares issued by the Company in exchange thereof.
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33.

34.

Notes to Financial Statements

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals were payable as

follows:
Less than one year —FNRN
Between one and five years —FREAFA

The Group leases certain properties located in Mainland China
and ltaly as the Group’s offices. The leases run for an initial
period of three to six years.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments in respect of the purchase of property,
plant and equipment outstanding as at 31 December but not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Contracted for EEIES)
Authorised but not contracted for EREBRETY

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

33. REHEKIE
TR ESEERSNReB|OT

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E——fF —T——F
+=ZA=+—8H +=—A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT T ARBEF T
1,981 1,681

200 1,207

2,181 2,888

AEEEFBEAENBEAMNERE TYE
ERASENRAE VI EEMA=2X
EEO

34. BARKIE
EUBRENE BERRBN+-A=1+—
B & AR ST AHME I AR B S Rk N B E A
BAREEMT

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E-_F ===
+=A=+-R +=ZA=t-A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TF ARBFT
80,526 977
80,526 977

Kingdom Holdings Limited € Z#ZRER A7 NEE)
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Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with the company controlled by
the controlling shareholders of the Company’s
ultimate holding company and the company
controlled by one of the Company’s directors

(@)

0]

(ii)

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group leased an office located in Mainland
China from Zhejiang Kingdom Creative Co., Ltd.
(“Kingdom Creative”) and incurred operating lease
charges of RMB200,000 (2011: RMB200,000). Mr.
Ren Wei Ming, who ultimately controls the Group,
also has a controlling equity interest over Kingdom
Creative.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group paid commission expenses to Huaning Flax
totalling RMB16,000 (2011: RMB116,000) and a
warehouse rental fee of RMB55,000 (2011: Nil).
Huaning Flax is an associate of the Group and Mr.
Ren Wei Ming, who ultimately controls the Group,
also has an equity interest over Huaning Flax.

The lease, commission expenses and sales were made
according to published prices and conditions offered by

the lessor, the service provider or to the major customers

of the Group.

2012 Annual Report — 8 — —F F 3§

35.

BEELTRS
@@ HBEFXQARKERAFANER

BRERZHH AT UAREHRERQF
—REERFNLRNETHNRS

0]

(ii)

RNEE—ZE——F+-_A=1+—
AIEFE  AEEENTEER]
¥R ERAR ([SEAZE])
A8 A — (L 5 P B R BE B 3 A
= FEENCEREEAAA
R #200,000C (=& ——4:
AR #200,0007T) ° L4 A
BREBE R RLIERIE - HIR
WH S ER AR -

REE=_Z——F+=_A=+—
BIEFEE  AN&EE R ERD
XN EeERALEARK
16,0007 (ZZE——F: AR¥
116,00070) R EEM© &EAH A
R #¥55,000L (Z &2 —— &
4 ) o 5RO il A AN B B A B
AR MEEREEBAERR
SARIERRARER - R EE Rk
Jie B9 A A o

HE BEERRHEEREADEA
EIRBHEREHRKAAREIER
FRENE RMER RIEETT-




Notes

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b)

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

35. BEIRSZ @
b TEEFZTEEBEAEWNFEE

2012 2011
—EF-=F B
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTT

Short term employee benefits % HAE B A 3,397 3,441
Post-employment benefits B A 12 13 A 90 110
Equity-settled share option expense N E B AR R X 51 68

3,538 3,619

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive’s
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

The related party transactions in respect of note (a) above
also constitute connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

EERETBITRABMERE—FFF
BN SRR M EES

EXWE@QFRNBEEL RS TE
RRER S (E&ER EMHRAF14A

B)e
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

financial

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2012

Financial assets

Trade and notes receivables
Financial assets included in

FEWE 5 BRI U R I
TREE (AN

prepayments, deposits and other  #& J H {th & Y 5118 )

receivables
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY
Pledged deposits EHEFEFER

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

TREE

Financial liabilities

Interest-bearing bank loans

Trade payables

Amount due to a related company

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

138 2012 Annual Report — & — —F 43

BARBE ARG

ERAE

36. RERSENERMIA
RBEHR SENSRTANEREEAELR
T
—g-=f
Group
rKE
Financial
assets at
fair value
Loans and  through profit
receivables or loss Total
BRANEE
BRE SFFABEMN
PR FRIE tRMEE BEr
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% T AR%ETx AR% T
218,077 - 218,077
16,957 - 16,957
163,643 - 163,643
35,900 - 35,900
- 68 68
434,577 68 434,645
Group
rE

SHRRTER
RS 5063
| e

TR BE (GtARMBRMNKIEAR
BIRER)

Financial liabilities
at amortized cost
RE AR A BREY
=y =Ki
RMB’000

AR¥TF R

215,684
43,186
55

36,205

295,130




Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continvedy  36. REFI 7 EHNEMT A @

2011 —T——F
Financial assets TREE Group
REE
Financial
assets at
fair value
Loans and  through profit
receivables or loss Total
BRARERE
BERR AR
JE W 3R I8 EREE HBET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTTT ARBTT

Trade and notes receivables JEURE 5 BR 7R N FE I R 4% 149,338 = 149,338
Financial assets included in TREE (FTATERRK
prepayments, deposits and e KE fth e Y FRIA)
other receivables 6,471 = 6,471
Cash and cash equivalents ReMIREEEY 163,502 = 163,502
Pledged deposits 2R AEFER 37,600 - 37,600
Financial assets at fair value RARBEFABERN
through profit or loss TREE - 1,033 1,033
356,911 1,033 357,944
Financial liabilities TRAaR Group
REE

Financial liabilities
at amortized cost

R AR AR

THEE

RMB’000

ARETT

Interest-bearing bank loans FFRRITER 164,100

Trade payables JERTE SRR 58,349
Financial liabilities included in other eHAE (GFAHMENRIER

payables and accruals TERER) 23,757

246,206

Kingdom Holdings Limited € Z#RAER A7 KLY




140

Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

2012

Financial assets

Amounts due from subsidiaries
Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities

Amount due to a subsidiary

2012 Annual Report — 8 — —F F 3§

TREE

& W Pl 18 2 R R IR
ReRReEED

TRAE

FEA —FEF B 2 R 5RIA

36. MEHNSENEHMITE @
—E—_—fF

Company
/N

Loans and
receivables
BERREWRRE
RMB’000
ARBT

283,153
2,064

285,217

Company

b NN

Financial liabilities
at amortized cost
RESHA A A BREY
=Y =Ki
RMB’000

AR¥T R

6,716

6,716




Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

36. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continuvey 36. RERI D EHNEHM I A @
2011 ==t

Financial assets TREE Company
P/ N/NEC]

Loans and

receivables

B % EWGRTIE

RMB’000

ARETF T

Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL B B A R 5RIB 278,195
Cash and cash equivalents Re RREFEY 1,870

280,065

Financial liabilities TRAaR Company
ZiN/NE|

Financial liabilities

at amortized cost

R SR AN A BRHY

TRIBE

RMB’000

ARBTIT

Other payables H A & A< FRIE 230
Amount due to a subsidiary &R — I B 8 B k1A 3,800

4,030

Kingdom Holdings Limited & Z KA R 2 3 141
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Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

37.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and

37. DABERARBESHRERS

AEBEANATERRBEELBESRT

disclosing the fair value of financial instruments: BEHRREE:

Level 1: fair values measured based on quoted prices F—E: RAFEEXBENERTS L
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or FRE (REFAR)TENLAAE
liabilities; (£l

Level 2:  fair values measured based on valuation techniques F£= RGERDFEN R EIE Mz
for which all inputs which have a significant effect FHERDNMEBAERTR
on the recorded fair value are observable, either TEYF'?E%E?E’]%HF W E AR
directly or indirectly; and ARBEEFERTE X

Level 3: fair values measured based on valuation techniques F= RIGERTFEN R AEE Mk
for which any inputs which have a significant F(hE R I7 8 E A 8 A B I FE4K
effect on the recorded fair value are not based on BAEETSHIE (TAEERA
observable market data (unobservable inputs). B)15 uﬂ jf%TEAEE@fTJ BA

Assets measured at fair value: RAREBEFENEE:

Group REE

31 December
2012 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—E-—F
1+=A
=t+—H E—E E-E E=FE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRE ARMTR ARMTR ARMTxR
Financial assets at fair value BRAABETA
through profit or loss BEafemEE
— foreign exchange forward contracts ~ —/MNE&R I 4 68 - 68 -
31 December
2011 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
—E——F
+=A
=+—H £ E_E F-E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TT ARETT AR®BTR
Financial assets at fair value BRAABETA
through profit or loss BEafemEE
— foreign exchange forward contracts ~ —/MNE&R G 4 1,033

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there were no
transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value measurements,
and no transfers into and out of level 3 fair value

measurements.
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38.

Notes to Financial Statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial liabilities other than derivatives
comprise interest-bearing bank loans, trade payables, an
amount due to a related company and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for
the Group's operations. The Group has various financial assets
such as trade and notes receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents that arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is to
manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s operations
and its sources of finance.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks which are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank
loans with floating interest rates. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax for the year (through
the impact on the floating rate borrowings). The change in
interest rates has no impact on the Group’s and Company’s
equity excluding retained profits.

38.

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

MEEEEEEEREER

AEENTZEHMEE (TTETARKRMNE
B RETER BNEZERX BN —F
FENRRAREMBENRE - ZEEREA
EEEENRAASERHEEEBATE
- AKEHEESRIANESREE  WE
WEZEANEREE BAR #eRE
WA BERERARRERAEE
EBY DEERKEXRBEMESL-

AEENUTER S T EBEEINE
BH BHEEEAREZSERARERRE
ERERRR -

NREENSBMTAELNTERKR AFIRE
B SNERER  EERBREABIEER - EE
ERFTIEE T UM EESRAROBER -
AEEFBITET AN TBRSNT R
=MIFE2.4 -

MERER

AEBEWTISN R EFE R T RERNEEHR
FERRFTEMRITEREH - AKEL K
ERITES R T AP EN AR -

TRETEMEEMEBHRTE KAEEFA
BN BN RSB e EBNHRE
(BBRHFHMRETNTE) - FIRESFHH
AEERARBNED (TNEEREEF)
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Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

2012 —E——F
RMB AREE
RMB AR
2011 —E——fF
RMB AR
RMB AR

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group has foreign
currency sales and purchases and certain trade receivables,
payables and bank balances that are denominated in USS$,
Euros and HK$ other than the functional currency of the
Group, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by entering into
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its exposure
to fluctuations on the translation into RMB of its foreign
operations of sales in US$ and Euros, as described in note 25.
It is the Group'’s policy to ensure that the net exposure is kept
to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign currencies at
a fixed rate where necessary to address short term imbalances.
The management will continue to monitor foreign exchange
exposure and will continue to consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure by using financial instruments such
as foreign currency forward contracts.
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38.

HEEBEEEEREE @

FI =2 [ B ()
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points  profit before tax
HE R B4 A& R
#hn, CGRD) #hn, CGRd)
RMB’000
AR¥T T
(100) 84
100 84)
(100) 64
100 (64)
ISR B

SMERR RRINEERZBMER SR T A
MARBEIRIKRSRERBOER A
SENIINEEE HFTRKREZ RN EBH
TR M SRTTAE R SE AR R B M T RE B HE 5
=R ﬁﬁlfx%E BT METTME  EAKER
HONE R

AOP 25 P A - AR EIE BT MNERRA
HISIREL S B IN R PASE T R BT S (E A 85
EMEBS/ARERRBOER KmEER
SN AEENHEANETEREB
ZEEERE ARE HINEFIRG LA
L\M@%HKM5%‘%&11%%%7%%7@? EHEE
A B S PR SNE R\ By - WA= BB B
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38.
AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the US$, Euros and HK$ exchange rate, with

all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before

tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and
liabilities including foreign currency derivatives). The change

in foreign currency exchange rate has no impact on the equity
excluding retained profits.

Year ended 31 December 2012 HE_T——%F
T-A=t—HLHEE

If RMB weakens against US$ MARY K ETES

If RMB strengthens against US$ MARBHETHER

Year ended 31 December 2011 HE_T——F
TZA=+—RHILFE

If RMB weakens against US$ MARYE K ETES

If RMB strengthens against US$ MARBHETHER

HEEBEEEEREE @
IS & B ()

AR T BT KB TTER SR g
BNERE (AREREERAE (B
BEITETR)NARBERE) - IMNEEXE
YD (FERFRERN) TEXE-

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax

SEEER BR B AT 2
EH(FRR)  #E ORD)

% RMB’000

AR%F

5 5,596
(5) (5,596)

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax

SN [ & B Bt B0 7
EFCRER) s ORd)

% RMB’000

ARETT
5 3,677
(5) (3,677)
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2012

If RMB weakens against EUR
If RMB strengthens against EUR

Year ended 31 December 2011

If RMB weakens against EUR
If RMB strengthens against EUR
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HE-_T——F
TZA=+—HLEFE

AR N BT 8 55
AR N BT oA

BE_Z—F
+TZA=+—HLEE

AR 5 BT 55

I AR R BT 8858

IS TELBR (@)

38. BIEKBREEEEREER @

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
SPhHEfE = RR B A %8
EH(TE) % OE2)
% RMB’000
AR®BT T
5 1,497
(5) (1,497)
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax
SN [ = B 75 A1 g A
EF () 8 Cfd)
% RMB’000
ARET T
5 1,232
(5) (1,232)




38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2012

If RMB weakens against HK$
If RMB strengthens against HK$

Year ended 31 December 2011

If RMB weakens against HK$
If RMB strengthens against HK$

Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

HE-_T——F
TZA=+—HLEFE

A R RS T 88 55

AR H ST

BE_Z—F
+TZA=+—HLEE

AR K ST 55

AR R P T 58

38. BIEKBREEEEREER @

Fh s LB )
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit

rate before tax
IhHEE RR B A& R
EH (T ) #hn, (R

% RMB’000

AR%T

5 129

5) (129)

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease)
foreign currency in profit
rate before tax

SNEE e B 5% A1t 7
EFCRER) s ORd)

% RMB’000
ARBETT

5 1,092

(5) (1,092)

Kingdom Holdings Limited € Z#RER A7 ¥V




148

Notes to Financial Statements
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As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and notes receivables and deposits and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
Credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount.

Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Group’s
established policy, procedures and control relating to customer
credit risk management. Credit quality of the customer is
assessed through credit verification procedures.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from trade and notes receivables are
disclosed in note 21 to the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. MBEREEBREREEm®w

AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk T B 14 L B

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the T RAEBRBERARN SR A G B
end of the reporting period, based on contractual undiscounted R (REHARBEBRMNF)

payments, was as follows:
Group REME

As at 31 December 2012
RZE-ZF+ZA=+-H

Less than 3t012 Tto5 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
BREX  HR=AR =E+=fiA -Z5f% SREF &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR ARMTR AR%TR ARETR ARETR

Interest-bearing bank loans FAEBTER - 23,015 201,095 - - 224,110
Trade payables EREHER 30,001 10,597 2,588 - - 43,186
Amount due to a related company T —FIFIE R AR 55 - - - - 55
Other payables H e 8 36,205 - - - - 36,205

66,261 33,612 203,683 - - 303,556

As at 31 December 2011
RZF——F+ZA=1-H

Less than 3t012 Tto5 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
BER  SR=EA =Et+=fA —EI0f SREF At

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  AREBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR

Interest-bearing bank loans STRRTER - 32,424 138,120 - = 170,544
Trade payables BB Z&R 43,669 6,484 8,196 - - 58,349
Other payables Hit A 23,757 - - = - 23,757

67,426 38,908 146,316 - - 252,650
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Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38. BIEKBREEEEREER @
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Company

7B R B (@)
Z /NG|

As at 31 December 2012
R-E--%+-A=+-H

Less than 3to12 1t05 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
REX  SRZMEA ZE+=fA —-Enf SREFE CH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARWTR AR¥TR AR%Tn ARETR ARETR
Amount due to a subsidiary R —RIBARZE 6,716 - - - - 6,716
6,716 - - - - 6,716

As at 31 December 2011
R-ZF—F+_A=1+—H

Less than 3t012 Ttob More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total
B2k  OR=ER ZETZfEA —ERF SRAE Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR%FTR ARBTT ARETT ARETR AR%Tx
Other payables H it e R 230 - - - - 230
Amount due to a subsidiary R —RINBARZE 3,800 = = = = 3,800
4,030 - = = = 4,030

Capital management EXRERE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are AEEEAEENEEZB RRAREAEER
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern BIREORES UHFRERNERL X L
XEHEBERBERFREAEBE

and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustment AEBEERHEEARE WRFRLBERTLD
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or EEEHRAR RERIABRELRRE K
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend SEAAERMRFRMTARE  MRERE
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue BARLBTHRD RBE-ZT——F+=
A=+—BR=ZE—F+ZA=+—HIE
FEAEEVEHEAEENBR BXR
HAZFFEHRE -

new shares. No changes were made in the Group’s objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the years
ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 38.

AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

Notes to

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net debt includes
interest-bearing bank loans, trade payables and other payables

and accruals less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes

equity attributable to the owners of the parent. The gearing

ratios as at the end of the reporting periods was as follows:

Interest-bearing bank loans

Trade payables

Amount due to a related company
Other payables and accruals

Less: Cash and cash equivalents

Net debt
Total equity

Capital and net debt

Gearing ratio

FHRRITER

e E B AR

&N — Rl B3 & R 3R
H i e R R TAIRE B
wRERREEEY

B
AR

BARRERFER
BEHLR

Financial Statements

Bt 75 ¥R 3R Y &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+-H=+—H

HEEBEEEEREE @

BEARERE @)
AEEFHE B XRERFERN BELER
ERBEEFERNERNEREMNER FEE-
BEEFHEBETEBRITER ENEZRR
UREMEMNFIBNMERER RERE &
ReZEBY BEARRBTAREAR ABGE
moRHMEBMRNBBELELT !

31 December 31 December
2012 2011
—E--F ===
+=BA=+—H +=—A=+—H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBTT
215,684 164,100
43,186 58,349
55 -
43,506 30,947
(163,643) (163,502)
138,788 89,894
822,879 761,863
961,667 851,757
14% 11%

Kingdom Holdings Limited £Z#RAERA A
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Notes to Financial Statements

Bt 5 ¥R 3R B &

As at 31 December 2012 R-E——#+=-H=+—H

39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39. REHRSBE
On 15 March 2013, the board of directors of the Company RZZE—=F=A+HA KARAAEZGE
proposed a final dividend of HK7 cents per ordinary share ERBE_T——F+_A=+—HILFE
totalling approximately RMB35,537,000 for the year ended IREFREBRBEZIINRERE &3
31 December 2012, which is subject to the approval of the #I AR %35,537,0007T ° IR BB KRR FIAR
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general RRERERRBFRS L4t/E (Hit12) -

meeting (note 12).

40. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 40. #t/ES OB BHRE

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and EEGgENZE—=F=ATHBEIHERK
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 15 March EETEARE B RE -

2013.

152 2012 Annual Report — & — —F 43




Company Name: Kingdom (B) Size: 210mm x 285mm (?C (?C+K)) Date: 11/04/2013 (20:38)
Job Type: AR Translator: JE File name: 17B130230237insideback




#oyk: FENCTESEREERE
Add : HengGang Town, HaiYan County, ZheJiang Province, China E-mail: Kingdom@Kingdom-china.com

www.kingdom-china.com




	Cover
	Inside Cover
	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Statement
	Financial Summary
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Directors and Senior Management
	Report of the Directors
	Corporate Governance Report
	Independent Auditors’ Report
	Consolidated Income Statement
	Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Statement of Financial Position
	Notes to Financial Statements
	Inside Back Cover
	Back Cover



